

Employee Handbook

December 2021



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	
Purpose	
Scope	
Severability	
Distribution and Revisions	
Disclaimer	
General Employment Policies	
Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)	3
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964	3
The Pregnancy Discrimination Act	3
The Equal Pay Act of 1963 (EPA)	3
The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (ADEA)	
Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)	4
Sections 102 and 103 of the Civil Rights Act of 1991	
The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (GINA)	
Requesting a Reasonable Accommodation	
Harassment and Discrimination	4
Bullying	
Sexual Harassment	
Drugs and Alcohol Policy	
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)	S
Veterans' Preference	
Medical Examinations	
Workplace Violence	g
Safety and Right to Know	
TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT	
Personnel Files	
Hiring of New Employees	
Hiring of Former Employees	
Nepotism/Employment of Relatives	
Personal Relationship amongst Employees	
Employment Status	12
Probationary Employee	12
Full-time employees	12
Part-time employees	13
Seasonal or temporary employees	13
Exempt or Non-Exempt	
Changes in Employment Status	
Transfers	13
Promotions:	13
Demotions:	
Temporary Re-Assignments:	13
Work Hours	13



Time Clocks	
Unexcused Absences	14
Tardiness	14
On Call, Stand by Status & Call in/Call Back	15
Meal Breaks and Rest Periods	15
Breaks for Nursing Mothers	
Work Cancellation/Adverse Weather Conditions	
Town-Sponsored Events	16
Emergency Management	
Responsibility	16
Procedures	
Town of Pembroke Park Alerts Emergency Registration System	
Employee Responsibilities	
Management Responsibilities	
EMPLOYEE DISASTER WORK CLASSIFICATION TIERS	
Emergency Response & Recovery Employee (ERR - Tier I):	18
Emergency Operations Center Support Employee (EOC - Tier 2)	
Department Emergency Essential (DEE-Tier 3)	
Essential Ready Reserve (RR-Tier 4)	
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION	20
Documentation	22
Eventualities Not Covered	22
CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION	22
Classification Plan	22
Wages	23
Pay Periods and Direct Deposit	25
Travel Reimbursement and Advances	25
Professional & Service Memberships	26
Educational Assistance and Training Policy	26
Grading/Reimbursement Scale	
Conference and Seminar Policy	
Benefits	
Continuation of Benefits (Cobra)	
Short Term Disability Benefit	
Unemployment Compensation	
Workers Compensation Policy:	
Social Security	
Paid and Unpaid Leave	
Holidays	
Vacation/Annual Leave	
Sick Leave	
Jury Duty	
Bereavement/Funeral Leave	
Family and Medical Leave	
Military Leave	35



Domestic and Sexual Violence Leave of Absence	
Definitions	37
Unpaid leave/Leave Without Pay	37
Leave Donation Policy	
SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT	38
Voluntary Termination	
Discharge/Involuntary Termination	39
Layoff and Recall	39
Impact on Benefits	39
Exit Interview	39
Return of Property	39
Disciplinary Action	40
Performance Improvement Plan (PIP)	
Causes for Demotion, Suspension or Dismissal	41
EMPLOYEE ARREST OF CHARGE	42
Policy	42
Procedure	
EMPLOYEE PROCEDURAL RIGHTS	
Involuntary Termination and Procedural Rights	43
Right of appeal	44
Grievance Procedures	
WORK RULES AND CODE OF CONDUCT	
Code of Ethics	
Florida Code of ethics for Public Officers and Employees	
Pembroke Park Employee Code of Ethics	
Freedom of Information Act and Public Records Act	
Public Records	
Personal Conduct	
Outside Employment Guidelines	
Political Activity and Voting Time	
Political Activity and General Solicitation	
Customer Service	
Public Statement/Press Calls	
The Workplace and Town Resources	
Appearance	
Use of Town Resources	
Employee Identification	
Key Dispersal	
Uniforms and Safety Attire	
Personal Articles in the Workplace & Search of Property	
Personal Workspace & Displays	
Smoke-Free Workplace	
Care of Equipment	
Vehicle Usage	
Take Home Vehicles	56



Credit Cards	57
SAFETY	57
General Safety Rules:	57
Building Security	58
Acceptable Use Policy	58
Enforcement	58
Ethical and Appropriate Use	59
User Monitoring and Privacy	59
Passwords and User IDs	59
User Accountability	60
Data Confidentiality and Security	61
Unauthorized Access	
Denial of Service	62
Malicious Code	62
Tips for evaluating credibility include:	62
Personal (User Owned/Leased) and Contractor Devices	63
Mobile Devices - Smartphones, Tablets, Personal Digital Assistants, and Jump Drives	
Messaging (Email, text, SMS, Instant Message)	64
Internet Usage	
Social Media, Social Networking, and Blogging	66
Personal Use	66
Remote Access	67
Software	68
Physical Security and Unattended Equipment/Information	68
Security Incidents	68
FINITION OF TERMS	69
ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND RECEIPT	72



INTRODUCTION

PURPOSE

The purpose of these policies is to establish a uniform and equitable system of personnel administration for employees of the Town of Pembroke Park. Nothing in this manual shall be construed as contract terms for any Town employees.

These policies are not intended to be all-inclusive or to cover every situation that may arise. The Handbook contains general information and guidelines. These policies may be amended with or without notice at any time at the sole discretion of the Town and supersede all previous personnel policies. Revisions and amendments shall become effective upon approval by the Town Commission.

If you have any questions concerning eligibility for a particular benefit or the applicability of a policy or practice to you, you should address your specific questions to Human Resources or your Department Head.

SCOPE

These policies and procedures apply to all the Town's employees unless specifically addressed in a formal employment contract or insurance plan document. Where such documents specifically differ from these policies, then the applicable provision(s) of the subject agreement shall supersede these policies.

These policies are designed to work in combination with individual departmental policies and procedures; however, these policies shall prevail should they come into conflict with departmental policies or procedures.

No person, other than the Mayor and Town Commission or the Town Manager as authorized by the Town Commission, has the authority to enter into any agreement for employment with an employee for any specified period of time, or to make any agreement contrary to the provisions of this manual.

These policies govern regardless of past practices or former policies. This manual supersedes any previous verbal or written policies, statements, understandings, or agreements concerning terms and conditions of employment, except in cases of formal employment contracts or other legally binding agreements.

SEVERABILITY

If one or more provisions of this manual are superseded by or become in conflict with a formal employment contract, insurance plan documents, state or federal laws, or if they are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be inappropriate and voided, then the balance of the manual shall remain in effect.

DISTRIBUTION AND REVISIONS

A copy of this manual shall be provided to each employee, who shall be required to sign a standard form certifying his/her receipt and review of the manual.

Revisions or updates to the manual shall be provided to all employees in either paper form, by email, or by other electronic communication such as posting on the intranet. Employees are expected to review all



changes and updates and remain abreast of all current personnel policies. Periodically employees may be required to provide an updated sign-off that they have received and reviewed the manual and changes in policy.

DISCLAIMER

All employees of the Town are employed at will and may quit or be terminated at any time and for any or no reason. Nothing in any of the Town's rules, policies, handbooks, procedures or other documents relating to employment creates any express or implied contract or employment.

This handbook replaces any previously issued policies, practices and understandings, written or oral, governing employment. Nothing contrary to or inconsistent with the limitations in this paragraph creates any contract of employment unless:

- 1) The terms are in writing.
- 2) The document is labeled "contract'.
- 3) The document states the terms of employment; and
- 4) The document is signed by the Mayor and approved by a vote of the Town Commission.



GENERAL EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO)

The Town of Pembroke Park is committed to providing equal opportunity in all areas of employment, including but not limited to recruitment, hiring, demotion, promotion, transfer, selection, lay-off, disciplinary action, termination, compensation and selection for training.

The Town shall not discriminate against any employee or job applicant and prohibits discrimination against any person on the basis of race, color, sex, sexual orientation, sexual gender identity, age, religion, national origin, marital or veteran status, height, weight, disability, political affiliation, or other protected classes.

The Town hires those individuals authorized to work in the United States.

The Town adheres to the following federal laws which prohibit workplace discrimination and are enforced by the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC).

TITLE VII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964

This law makes it illegal to discriminate against someone based on race, color, religion, national origin, or sex. The law also makes it illegal to retaliate against a person because the person complained about discrimination, filed a charge of discrimination, or participated in an employment discrimination investigation or lawsuit. The law also requires that employers reasonably accommodate applicants and employees, unless doing so would impose an undue hardship on the operation of the employer's business.

THE PREGNANCY DISCRIMINATION ACT

This law amended Title VII to make it illegal to discriminate against a woman because of pregnancy, childbirth, or a medical condition related to pregnancy or childbirth. The law also makes it illegal to retaliate against a person because the person complained about discrimination, filed a charge of discrimination, or participated in an employment discrimination investigation or lawsuit.

THE EQUAL PAY ACT OF 1963 (EPA)

This law makes it illegal to pay different wages to men and women if they perform equal work in the same workplace. The law also makes it illegal to retaliate against a person because the person complained about discrimination, filed a charge of discrimination, or participated in an employment discrimination investigation or lawsuit.

THE AGE DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT ACT OF 1967 (ADEA)

This law protects people who are 40 or older from discrimination because of age. The law also makes it illegal to retaliate against a person because the person complained about discrimination, filed a charge of discrimination, or participated in an employment discrimination investigation or lawsuit.



TITLE I OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990 (ADA)

This law makes it illegal to discriminate against a qualified person with a disability in the private sector and in state and local governments. The law also makes it illegal to retaliate against a person because the person complained about discrimination, filed a charge of discrimination, or participated in an employment discrimination investigation or lawsuit. The law also requires that employers reasonably accommodate the known physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or employee, unless doing so would impose an undue hardship on the operation of the employer's business.

SECTIONS 102 AND 103 OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1991

Among other things, this law amends Title VII and the ADA to permit jury trials and compensatory and punitive damage awards in intentional discrimination cases.

THE GENETIC INFORMATION NONDISCRIMINATION ACT OF 2008 (GINA)

This law makes it illegal to discriminate against employees or applicants because of genetic information. Genetic information includes information about an individual's genetic tests and the genetic tests of an individual's family members, as well as information about any disease, disorder or condition of an individual's family members (i.e. an individual's family medical history). The law also makes it illegal to retaliate against a person because the person complained about discrimination, filed a charge of discrimination, or participated in an employment discrimination investigation or lawsuit.

REQUESTING A REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION

Employees should notify their manager or the Human Resources department when a reasonable accommodation is needed. Where necessary and feasible, reasonable accommodations will be made for qualified employees to perform the essential functions of the job in question if the accommodation does not cause the Town undue hardship.

All employees are required to comply with safety standards. Applicants who pose a direct threat to the health or safety of other individuals in the workplace, which cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation, will not be considered for employment. The Town will attempt to keep all employees so long as they do not cause undue hardship to the Town or its employees. Current employees who pose a direct threat to the health or safety of the other individuals in the workplace will be placed on appropriate leave until a solution has been identified by management.

HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION

Harassment is a form of employment discrimination that violates Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, (ADEA), and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, (ADA).

1. Harassment is unwelcome conduct that is based on race, color, religion, sex-gender (including pregnancy), national origin, age (40 or older), disability or genetic information. Harassment becomes unlawful where:



- A) Enduring the offensive conduct becomes a condition of continued employment, or
- B) The conduct is severe or pervasive enough to create a work environment that a reasonable person would consider intimidating, hostile, or abusive.
- 2. Sexual Harassment is unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature that is persistent or offensive and interferes with an employee's job performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

Anti-discrimination laws also prohibit harassment against individuals in retaliation for filing a discrimination charge, testifying, or participating in any way in an investigation, proceeding, or lawsuit under these laws; or opposing employment practices that they reasonably believe discriminate against individuals, in violation of these laws.

Petty slights, annoyances, and isolated incidents (unless extremely serious) shall not rise to the level of illegality. To be unlawful, the conduct must create a work environment that would be intimidating, hostile, or offensive to reasonable people.

Offensive conduct may include, but is not limited to, offensive jokes, slurs, epithets or name calling, physical assaults or threats, intimidation, isolation, ridicule or mockery, insults or put-downs, offensive objects or pictures, and interference with work performance. Harassment can occur in a variety of circumstances, including, but not limited to, the following:

- 1. The harasser can be the victim's supervisor, a supervisor in another area, an agent of the employer, a co-worker, or a non-employee.
- 2. The victim does not have to be the person harassed but can be anyone affected by the offensive conduct.
- 3. Unlawful harassment may occur without economic injury to, or discharge of, the victim.

Prevention is the best tool to eliminate harassment in the workplace. Managers are encouraged to take appropriate steps to prevent and correct unlawful harassment. They should clearly communicate to employees that unwelcome harassing conduct shall not be tolerated. They can do this by adhering to the complaint or grievance process and taking immediate and appropriate action when an employee complains. Managers should strive to create an environment in which employees feel free to raise concerns and are confident that those concerns shall be addressed.

Employees are encouraged to inform the harasser directly that the conduct is unwelcome and must stop. Employees should also report harassment to management at an early stage to prevent its escalation.

BULLYING

The Town will not in any instance tolerate bullying behavior. Employees found in violation of this policy will be disciplined, up to and including termination.

Bullying is defined as repeated, health-harming mistreatment of one or more people by one or more perpetrators. It is abusive conduct that includes:

- Threatening, humiliating, or intimidating behaviors.
- Work interference/sabotage that prevents work from being done.
- Verbal abuse.



Such behaviors violate the Town's Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct, as all employees will be treated equally with dignity and respect.

The Town considers the following types of behavior examples of bullying:

- Verbal bullying: slandering, ridiculing, or maligning a person or his or her family; persistent name calling that is hurtful, insulting, or humiliating; using a person as the butt of jokes; abusive and offensive remarks.
- Physical bullying: pushing, shoving, kicking, poking, tripping, assault, or threat of physical assault, damage to a person's work area or property.
- Gesture bullying: nonverbal gestures that can convey threatening messages.
- Exclusion: socially or physically excluding or disregarding a person in work-related activities.

In addition, the following examples may constitute or contribute to evidence of bullying in the workplace:

- Persistent singling out of one person.
- Shouting or raising one's voice at an individual in public or in private.
- Using obscene or intimidating gestures.
- Not allowing the person to speak or express himself of herself (i.e., ignoring or interrupting).
- Personal insults and use of offensive nicknames.
- Public humiliation in any form.
- Constant criticism on matters unrelated or minimally related to the person's job performance or description.
- Public reprimands.
- Repeatedly accusing someone of errors that cannot be documented.
- Deliberately interfering with mail and other communications.
- Spreading rumors and gossip regarding individuals.
- Encouraging others to disregard a supervisor's instructions.
- Manipulating the ability of someone to do his or her work (e.g., overloading, underloading, withholding information, setting deadlines that cannot be met, giving deliberately ambiguous instructions).
- Assigning menial tasks not in keeping with the normal responsibilities of the job.
- Taking credit for another person's ideas.
- Refusing reasonable requests for leave in the absence of work-related reasons not to grant leave.
- Deliberately excluding an individual or isolating him or her from work-related activities, such as meetings.
- Unwanted physical contact, physical abuse or threats of abuse to an individual or an individual's property (defacing or marking up property).

Individuals who feel they have experienced bullying should report this to their supervisor or to



Human Resources before the conduct becomes severe or pervasive. All employees are strongly encouraged to report any bullying conduct they experience or witness as soon as possible to allow the Town to take appropriate action.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Town prohibits sexual harassment of an employee by another employee, management representative, supplier, volunteer, or business invitee. The Town prohibits sexual harassment from occurring in and out of the workplace when representing the Town. Sexual harassment of non-employees by Town employees is also prohibited. The purpose of this policy is not to regulate personal morality or to encroach upon one's personal life, but to demonstrate a strong commitment to maintaining a workplace free of sexual harassment.

Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal, physical or visual conduct of a sexual nature constitute harassment when:

- 1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment.
- 2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for an employment decision affecting the individual; or
- 3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

Regarding unwelcome sexual advances toward non-employees, requests for sexual favors and other verbal, physical or visual conduct of a sexual nature constitute harassment when:

- 1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly in exchange for a benefit.
- 2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for a decision affecting the individual; or
- 3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's activities or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive environment.

Sexual harassment may include unwanted sexual advances; offering employment benefits in exchange for sexual favors; visual conduct (leering, making sexual gestures, displaying of sexually suggestive objects or pictures, cartoons or posters); verbal sexual advances, propositions or requests; verbal abuse of a sexual nature; graphic verbal commentaries about an individual's body; sexually degrading words used to describe an individual; suggestive or obscene letters, caricatures or representations of persons using electronically or physically altered photos, drawings, or images; notes or invitations; and/or, physical conduct (touching, assault, impeding or blocking movements).

If an employee is witness to or believes that the employee has experienced sexual harassment, they must immediately notify their supervisor or the Human Resources department.

Harassment of Town employees, in connection with their work, by non-employees may also be a violation of this policy. Any employee who experiences harassment by a non-employee, or who observes harassment of an employee by a non-employee should report such harassment to their supervisor or the Human Resources department. Appropriate action shall be taken against any



non-employee.

Notification by employee to appropriate personnel of any harassment problem is essential to the success of this policy and the Town generally. The Town cannot resolve a harassment problem unless it is reported. Therefore, it is the responsibility of all employees to bring those kinds of problems to the attention of management so that steps are necessary to correct them.

Violation of this sexual harassment policy shall subject employees to disciplinary action, up to and including immediate discharge.

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL POLICY

The Town recognizes that the possession or use of unlawful drugs and the abuse of alcohol pose a threat to the health and safety of all employees. All job applicants shall be subject to pre-employment drug testing as a prerequisite to employment with the Town. It is the obligation of the job applicant to notify the approved testing facility of any legal drug prescribed for the job applicant by a physician. Any employee who is observed by a supervisor or department head to be intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol or drugs during working hours or is under reasonable suspicion of same shall be immediately tested and is subject to discipline up to and including termination. The supervisor or Department Head shall immediately report any reasonable suspicions to the Human Resources department.

An employee shall be required to submit to alcohol, drug or controlled substance testing when the employee's work performance causes a reasonable suspicion that that employee is impaired due to current intoxication, drug or controlled substance use, or in cases where employment has been conditioned upon remaining alcohol, drug, or controlled dangerous substance free following treatment. Refusal to submit to testing when requested may result in immediate disciplinary action, including termination. Supervisors or Department heads that observe behavior constituting reasonable suspicion are required to institute testing and do not have the option of sending the employee home as an alternative.

The manufacturing, distribution, dispensation, possession, and use of alcohol or unlawful drugs on Town premises or during work hours by employees is strictly prohibited.

Employees must notify their supervisor within five (5) business days of conviction for a drug or alcohol related violation, regardless if the violation occurred in the workplace.

Employees who are required to maintain a Commercial Driver's License (CDL) are subject to random drug testing as required by the federal government.

Employees using prescription drugs that may affect job performance or safety must notify their supervisor and Human Resources, who are required to maintain the confidentiality of any information regarding an employee's medical condition in accordance with the Health Insurance Portability and Protection Act. A program to assist employees who may have a drug/alcohol problem is provided through the Town's Employee Assistance Program.

No prescription drug or Medical Marijuana should be used by any person other than the individual to whom it is prescribed. Such substances or non-prescription (over the counter) drugs should be used only as prescribed or indicated. Employees are prohibited from consuming prescription drugs or utilizing Medical Marijuana that are not prescribed in their name on Town property or while performing Town business. Soliciting or distributing prescription drugs or Medical Marijuana for or to other employees is



also strictly prohibited.

FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA)

The Fair Labor Standards Act, Title 29 U.S.C. (Sections 201-219) is the federal law requiring that covered employees be paid at least the federal minimum wage and overtime pay (at time and one-half of the employee's regular rate of pay) for all hours worked over 40 hours in a workweek.

The Town Personnel Manual refers to employees covered by FLSA as "non-exempt" and to those not covered by the FLSA minimum wage and overtime provisions as "exempt".

VETERANS' PREFERENCE

Title 5 USC, Section 2108 and Chapter 295, F.S., set forth the requirements for public employers to provide preferences in employment, retention, and promotion to eligible veterans, spouses of veterans, and other veterans' preference eligible individuals.

MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS

The Town may require an employee to submit to a medical or psychological exam to determine fitness for duty provided the examinations are job related and consistent with business necessity. Tests for alcohol or illegal drug use are not considered medical examinations, nor are physical agility tests. Fitness for duty exams shall be conducted by a licensed professional designated by the Town and shall be paid for by the Town.

The Town shall comply with all applicable laws including ADA, FMLA, HIPAA, Worker's Compensation and related laws and guidelines in addressing circumstances where an employee is found to be unfit to perform some or all their essential job functions. This policy in no way shall be construed to limit employees' rights under any federal or State Law.

Employees determined to be un-fit for duty and requiring associated leave, may access accrued leave banks and other paid or unpaid leave time consistent with the policies contained within this manual and state and federal laws.

Light duty or modified return-to-work arrangements are not guaranteed and would not indicate continued employment if provided.

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE

The Town of Pembroke Park is committed to reducing the potential for workplace violence. In this regard, it is the policy of the Town to prohibit acts or threats of verbal or physical violence by any party, directed toward employees, citizens, elected officials, and visitors to the Town's facilities or others.

The Town is committed to providing a safe and healthy work environment, consistent with health and safety rules and shall take prompt remedial action, up to and including discharge or criminal prosecution, against any employee who engages in threatening behavior or acts of violence.

The Town shall take appropriate action against any non-employee who engages in threatening behavior including former employees and visitors to Town facilities, up to and including criminal prosecution.

Employees who display a tendency to engage in violent, abusive or threatening behavior shall be referred



to the Town's health plan for counseling or other appropriate treatment. Such employees shall also be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including immediate discharge.

Additionally, it is the responsibility of Town employees to assist in identifying problem employees. The Town Manager should be immediately notified of situations or incidents involving threats, acts of violence, aggressive behavior, threatening or offensive comments and similar acts. Employee reports made pursuant to this policy shall be held in confidence to the maximum possible extent. The Town shall not tolerate retaliation against any employee reporting a violation of this policy.

SAFETY AND RIGHT TO KNOW

The Town complies with federal and state Right-To-Know laws and shall make every effort to provide information to employees about any hazardous chemical to which they may be exposed. Right-To-Know information is posted near the areas in which employees may be exposed to chemicals or other potentially hazardous materials. Employees are required to read and be familiar with all posted materials.

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT

PERSONNEL FILES

The Town maintains a personnel file on each employee. The personnel file includes such information as the employee's job application, resume, records of training, documentation of performance appraisals and salary increases, and other employment records. It is important that personnel records be kept up to date by employees and will be updated at performance reviews.

Employees should notify Human Resources when any of the following personal information changes:

Name	Education status
Address	Military status
Telephone number	Driver's license status
Marital status	Licensing, certification, and training, or
Emergency notification contacts	Other information which may impact the job requirements
Beneficiary Information	Direct Deposit/Bank Account Information

Personnel files are the property of the Town, and access to some of the information those files contain may be restricted in accordance with state and or federal law. Personnel records are subject to the Florida Public Records Law and contents must be provided as may be required by the Florida Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, except for information that is exempt and confidential pursuant to law.

Anyone who wishes to review a personnel file should contact the Human Resources Department. With reasonable advance notice, personnel files may be reviewed in the Town's offices and in the presence of an individual appointed by the Town to maintain the files. An employee may view personal (associated with that employee) personnel records at any time in their entirety.

No originals of any personnel records shall be kept at the Department level. All originals shall be



maintained by the Human Resources Department.

HIRING OF NEW EMPLOYEES

The Town Manager has final approval of hiring new employees, with the exception of the following positions that are hired by the Town Commission. The Town Commission shall have the sole authority to hire the Town Manager, Divisional Directors, and Department Heads. The Town Commission also has the sole authority to hire independent contractors.

HIRING OF FORMER EMPLOYEES

It shall be the policy of the Town of Pembroke Park that any individual who has been formerly employed by the Town may be considered for re-employment provided the individual left the Town in good standing. If the individual did not leave the Town in good standing, he/she must reasonably demonstrate improved work ability and attitude before re-employment is considered.

If the candidate for re-employment is hired, he/she may not continue to receive disbursements from the Town's retirement plan. The Town shall follow all applicable laws and regulations related to retirement benefits when rehiring a former employee.

Individuals interested in applying for re-employment with the Town should follow the appropriate application process for an open position. The application shall indicate that the individual is applying for re-employment. The Department Head shall examine the application to determine if any additional information is needed and make a recommendation of whether to rehire the applicant.

NEPOTISM/EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES

No elected official or Town employee with supervisory authority, shall employ, promote, advance or advocate the employment, promotion, or advancement of an individual who is a relative, to a position in the agency over which he or she exercises jurisdiction or control.

Relatives include: father, mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half-brother, or half-sister. [Section 112.3135, F.S.].

PERSONAL RELATIONSHIP AMONGST EMPLOYEES

A "personal relationship" is defined as a relationship between employees who have or have had a continuing relationship of a romantic or intimate nature.

An employee who is involved in a personal relationship with another employee may not occupy a position in the same department as, work directly for or supervise the employee with whom he or she is involved.

The Town reserves the right to take prompt action if an actual or potential conflict of interest arises concerning individuals who engage in a personal relationship that may affect terms and conditions of employment. Supervisors and managers are prohibited from dating subordinates and may be disciplined for such actions, up to and including termination.



When a conflict or the potential for conflict arises because of a personal relationship between employees, even if there is no line of authority or reporting involved, the employees may be separated by reassignment, or terminated from employment. If such a personal relationship between employees develops, it is the responsibility and obligation of the employees involved to disclose the existence of the relationship to the Human Resources department.

When a conflict or a potential for conflict affecting terms or conditions of employment arises because of the relationship, the individuals concerned will be given the opportunity to decide who is to be transferred to another position, or terminated, if no position is available. If no decision is made within 30 calendar days of the offer to resolve the situation, the Town will determine who is to be transferred or, if necessary, terminated from employment.

EMPLOYMENT STATUS

PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEE

New employees who receive a position within the Town shall have a one (1) year probationary period. If an employee is promoted to a new position, the employee shall have a probationary period of one (1) year. This gives an employee the opportunity to demonstrate their skill and ability in performing the requirements of the new position. The Town may extend the job probationary period, not to exceed six (6) months, to allow an employee more time to learn the new job requirements and fully master their position or learn the processes of the Town.

All new hires will receive a performance evaluation report after three (3) months of employment. All employees will receive a performance evaluation report from their supervisor every six (6) months in June and December. A performance evaluation report may be issued for employees placed on a performance improvement plan.

A department head may terminate a probationary employee anytime during the probationary period if, in the department head's opinion, the employee is unable or unwilling to perform the duties of the position satisfactorily or that work habits and dependability do not merit continuance in the position. The employee so terminated shall be notified in writing of the termination.

Probationary employees do not have any proprietary rights to their position and may be terminated from the Town at any time during their probationary period without the right of appeal.

The Town may, however, return a promoted employee to their previous position if the requirements of the new job are not being met, provided the prior position is vacant.

Employees who are hired and serve at the pleasure of the Town Commission do not serve a probationary period of employment but will be subject to evaluation every six (6) months. These employees may be terminated at any time with or without cause, in the Town Commission's sole discretion.

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES

Full-time employees are regularly scheduled to work thirty (30) hours per week and are eligible for



the Town's employee benefits program, as outlined in later sections.

PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

Part-time employees are regularly scheduled to work less than thirty (30) hours per week on a year-round basis. Part-time employees are not eligible for the Town's insurance benefits but may be covered by certain statutory protections such as Family Medical Leave and worker's compensation.

SEASONAL OR TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES

Temporary employees may be scheduled to work on a full- or part-time basis, as dictated by operational needs, for specific, limited time periods. Seasonal or temporary employees are not eligible for employee benefits.

EXEMPT OR NON-EXEMPT

Based on job content, job duties, salary status and other criteria set by the Fair Labor Standards Act, each position within the Town is classified as either "exempt" or "non-exempt".

CHANGES IN EMPLOYMENT STATUS

TRANSFERS

A transfer is an assignment to a position with comparable duties, responsibilities, authority, and compensation.

PROMOTIONS:

A promotion is a change in work assignment that results in an expanded scope of job duties and responsibilities. An employee can be promoted to fill an existing, vacant classification; or an employee's position can be reclassified if duties and responsibilities have been expanded over time. Promotions may result in an increase in pay.

DEMOTIONS:

A demotion is a change in work assignment that results in a reduced scope of job duties and responsibilities. An employee can be demoted to fill an existing, vacant classification; or an employee's position can be reclassified if duties and responsibilities have been reduced over time. Demotions may result in a decrease in pay.

TEMPORARY RE-ASSIGNMENTS:

In order to be considered a temporary re-assignment, the re-assignment must last at least two (2) full pay periods. The Town Manager may choose to temporarily fill a vacancy during the selection process. Temporary assignments are not generally made unless it is anticipated that it shall take more than thirty (30) calendar days to fill the position.

WORK HOURS

To ensure employee availability and accountability to the public the Town serves, all full-time employees



(exempt and non-exempt) are to be at work or available to the public and co-workers during the **normal** workdays Monday through Friday and the hours of 8:00 am to 5p.m, except on recognized holidays or away from the work site for an approved work-related activity or on approved leave. However, the work period is 7 days – Monday through Sunday, for the purposes of calculating overtime.

Employee work schedules shall be established by supervisors with the approval of the Town Manager.

TIME CLOCKS

Non-Exempt employees are required to follow established guidelines to accurately record hours of work by using the designated time-clock system for recording actual hours worked. A missed clock in/out is a violation of this policy and includes:

- 1. Failure to clock in/out on the Town's designated time clock at the beginning and/or end of their assigned shift consistent with established procedures.
- 2. Failure to clock in/out on their designated time clock for the meal break.
- 3. Failure to accurately and timely report time worked; or
- 4. Clocking in/out early, late or not at all when working an assigned shift.
- 5. Employees are not permitted to clock in more than seven (7) minutes prior to the start of their shift.
- 6. Hourly or non-exempt employees will clock in and out 4 times daily (beginning of shift, beginning of lunch break, end of lunch break and end of shift)

Employees may utilize a physical timeclock or clock in/out through the mobile app. The Town utilizes a feature in the HR payroll system called geofencing that sets a virtual barrier for where employees may clock in and out. The system will not allow employees to clock in and out outside of the 1-mile barrier from Town Hall. Employees having technical difficulties with clocking in and out must contact their Department Head for assistance.

UNEXCUSED ABSENCES

Employees are expected to report for work and be at their workstations at the scheduled time. If an employee expects to be absent from or late to work, he/she must inform his/her supervisor as soon as possible and under no circumstances later than thirty (30) minutes PRIOR to the scheduled workday. Unexcused and excessive absences and failure to notify the appropriate supervisor in case of absence may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. Failure to report for work or failure to call-in to report expected absence after three (3) consecutive business days) is considered will be considered as job abandonment.

TARDINESS

A "tardiness" occurs when an employee does not report to work at the scheduled start time or does not report back from lunch or work breaks on time. An employee is expected to be at work and ready to begin work at the start of the scheduled workday. An employee who is or expects to be tardy and has not made prior arrangements with his/her supervisor must report the tardiness to his/her supervisor within the first hour of the scheduled start time. Excessive unexcused tardiness may result in progressive discipline.



ON CALL, STAND BY STATUS & CALL IN/CALL BACK

The Town has extensive responsibilities during an emergency. As such, any employee may be called in to work at unscheduled times and may be required to perform duties outside his/her normal job function. As with mandatory overtime, employees are expected to be available and as flexible as possible to meet operational demands.

Hourly employees who are called back to work after having completed a normal workday or are called into work on their day off shall be paid for three (3) hours or the actual time worked, whichever is greater. These additional hours shall be paid at time and a half of the employee's straight hourly rate, regardless if the employee has met the FLSA standards of working a minimum of 40 hours .

The Town reserves the right to require employees to be in a "stand-by" status, meaning that the employee needs to be available to report to work during an off-duty. Stand-by status may be instructed verbally or in writing by the department supervisor, or the employee may be named on the official call-back roster. Off-duty time may include nights, weekends, or holidays.

Call Back time shall be paid, or compensatory time accrued as straight time, and not added to the employee's total hours for the week to constitute overtime.

Compensatory time shall be paid at the employee's current rate of pay on the day earned. Exempt employees are not entitled to overtime therefore, excluding them from this policy.

MEAL BREAKS AND REST PERIODS

Department heads or supervisors are responsible for scheduling lunch or rest periods that do not interfere with work requirements.

Employees are expected to use the rest and lunch breaks provided as intended and shall not be permitted to adjust work start time, end time, or lunch time by saving these breaks.

Rest period - a fifteen (15) minute rest period may be allowed during each half of a full-time employee's shift. Such rest periods are to begin and end at the employee's assigned work area. Department heads are responsible for scheduling rest periods that do not interfere with work requirements.

Lunch Period - An unpaid sixty (60) minute lunch period is provided when an employee works eight (8) or more consecutive hours. The lunch period shall begin and end at the employee's assigned work area and the employee shall "clock out" for the duration of the lunch period.

Non-exempt employees shall not be allowed to work during their lunch break.

Breaks for Nursing Mothers

The Town supports breastfeeding mothers by providing reasonable break time for an employee to breast feed her nursing child for up to two (2) years after the child's birth.

For both non-exempt and exempt employees, this break time is paid, and employees are not required to punch out. Both exempt and non-exempt employees must schedule any break time to express breast milk with their supervisor.



Upon notice, the employee's Department Head, or the Human Resources Department will provide the employee with a private area for the purpose of expressing breast milk.

WORK CANCELLATION/ADVERSE WEATHER CONDITIONS

If the Town is forced to temporarily close its operations for one day or less, the Town Manager will determine compensation for non-essential staff on a case by case basis. The Town manager, will also, determine appropriate compensation or time-off for exempt essential workers on a case by case basis. All non-exempt essential staff are subject to the FLSA overtime standards. Employees are expected to remain available to return to work throughout the regular workday. Closures of more than one day shall be addressed on a case-by-case basis, with the Town Manager providing timely directive.

During adverse weather conditions, the Town Commission or Town Manager will determine when Town facilities are closed. The Town Manager will determine when essential staff are required to remain on site before, during and/or after a storm. Employees shall be allowed to use accrued vacation time or compensatory time, or with supervisor approval, may modify the work schedule or make other reasonable schedule adjustments.

Decisions to cancel departmental programs (special events, recreation programs, etc.) shall be made by the Town Manager.

TOWN-SPONSORED EVENTS

From time to time, employees may be asked to attend events that are sponsored by the Town. Employees are expected to honor these requests unless there is a conflict due to religious reasons or documented medical issues.

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

The Town Manager is responsible for implementation of this policy during an emergency. The Town of Pembroke Park will make a reasonable effort to release employees from work prior to, during, and after emergency conditions to take care of personal situations such as family and property needs.

During a disaster or declared emergency, Town operations may be suspended, altered, or changed requiring an employee to be reassigned according to their emergency classification and the needs of the Town based upon the size, scope, and magnitude of the emergency. All employees are considered essential to this operation and must be prepared to support the community as assigned. In all cases, the goal of this directive is to ensure continuation and restoration of Town services, maintain safety and fulfill the Town's responsibilities to its citizens. Employees will be compensated in accordance with these guidelines, established pay policies, collective bargaining agreements, and regulations.

RESPONSIBILITY

When the Town Commission, County Administrator, or Governor declares a state of emergency and/or the normal operations of the Town of Pembroke Park or a facility, whether in part or whole, wherein Town operation(s) is closed for regular business due to emergency circumstances including but not limited to natural hazards such as fire(s), hurricane(s), tornadoes, flood(s), and/or



man-made disasters such as bombs, hazardous material incidents, mass casualty incidents, the following guidelines will apply to all Town of Pembroke Park Departments and Employees.

PROCEDURES

- 1. Upon declaration of a local emergency, the Town Manager will notify Department Heads of the emergency declaration and Department Heads will see that their respective employees are notified as to the extent and scope of the declared emergency.
- Despite suspension of government operations, employees may be required to be available
 to work either before, during, or immediately after an emergency occurs. Employees may
 be required to work flexible hours as required by the Town. Employees shall not assume
 they are not required to work based solely on any media or news reports regarding Town
 closings.
- 3. During an emergency or disaster event, employees may be assigned to perform their normal duties or they may be temporarily assigned to work at different job sites specific to an emergency event (i.e., working inside the Emergency Operations Center (EOC), Department Operating Centers (DOCs), a staging area or point of distribution, etc.). Efforts shall be made to assign employees to duties according to their respective knowledge, skills, abilities, and physical capabilities.
- 4. All Department Heads are responsible for training their employees and implementing their respective Departmental Disaster Preparedness Plans. Department Heads shall establish an emergency schedule and identify those positions required to work during the preemergency, emergency, and post-emergency phases. Additionally, each Department Head shall designate an alternate manager as a contact person should an emergency or disaster occur.
- 5. Employees will be notified of duty assignments either prior to an event, if practical, or when contact is made with the Department Head or designee. Those who do not have an assignment shall be placed on a standby list and are to report to a designated location identified by the Department Head or designee.

TOWN OF PEMBROKE PARK ALERTS EMERGENCY REGISTRATION SYSTEM

Addressing the needs of Town of Pembroke Park citizens must continue during an impending or declared local state of emergency and subsequent recovery period. To accomplish this, Town employees shall complete electronic alert(s) system registration within 30 days of employment. Every employee shall update electronic alert(s) system anytime pertinent information changes.

EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES

 Have a Plan: Employees should have an emergency preparedness plan to ensure their family is safe during an emergency. Employees should have at least 72 hours of supplies for each family member.



- Service Priority: Town operations to provide emergency services may supersede normal operations resulting in altering or suspending processing timeframes for personnel actions until the disaster recovery period has ended.
- Alternate Work Assignments: During the pre-disaster and disaster recovery periods, employees may perform duties other than the essential functions of their position. Depending on the needs of the Town, employees may work at different locations rather than their normal duty assignments.
- Pre-Assigned Employees: Many employees are assigned duties assisting with official Town disaster response/recovery efforts. These employees will report to their designated worksite when requested/directed to do so. Employees are to always keep their Town ID badge with them to aid law enforcement officials during curfews and re-entry.
- Contact with the Town: Regardless of an employee's disaster assignment, all employees must apprise themselves of the Town's and their department's operational status, maintain daily contact with their manager or other designated department representative, and provide the Town with up-to-date contact information for any temporary changes in address.
- Accurately report all hours worked and submit required timesheet and relevant forms in a timely manner to their manager for approval. Falsification of these records shall subject an employee to disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.
- All employees are required to report to work when regular Town/Department business and operations resume.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

- Department Heads and Supervisors must confirm the safety and well-being of all Town of Pembroke Park Team members.
- Department Heads and managers shall ensure all employees are enrolled in the electronic alerts system and shall ensure accuracy of electronic alerts data on an annual basis.
- Approve all hours worked and verify information reported by the employee on required forms is accurate.
- Department Heads or designees must ensure that essential employees on duty receive sufficient sleep to avoid endangering their safety or the safety of others due to fatigue.

EMPLOYEE DISASTER WORK CLASSIFICATION TIERS

EMERGENCY RESPONSE & RECOVERY EMPLOYEE (ERR - TIER I):

Emergency Response & Recovery Employees are those employees with job classifications directly related to tactical response and recovery efforts within the community. Generally, this may include, but is not limited to Law Enforcement, Public Safety, Code Enforcement/Building, and Public Works.

Work assignments during disasters and work classification tiers assigned to an employee is determined by Town Manager and Department Heads. These employees will be required to assist in the Town's disaster response and recovery efforts, which includes assignments requiring sheltering during the storm to ensure rapid response post storm. Roles may be pre-assigned or assigned as the situation dictates.



Department Heads and Managers are responsible for identifying Emergency Essential positions and shall ensure that employees are aware of individual responsibilities by communicating and notifying them of their emergency work assignment prior to the declaration of an emergency.

Employees designated as Emergency Essential must maintain contact accessibility with their supervisors. Emergency Essential employees who fail to report to their work assignment may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Employees who are unable to report to work should contact their supervisor by telephone. If telephone lines are down or existing conditions prevent contact by telephone, employees are to contact their work unit as soon as possible.

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER SUPPORT EMPLOYEE (EOC - TIER 2)

Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Support Employees are those specifically assigned through the Town Manager and Pembroke Park Office of Emergency Management and other authorized agencies to perform in one or more support functions outside their regular work duties.

Employees assigned to a leadership/support position within EOC or to specific roles as delineated within the Town's Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP), Emergency Operations Plan, and Recovery Plan. These employees will be required to assist in the Town's disaster response efforts which may include assignments requiring sheltering during the storm to ensure rapid response post storm. Roles may be pre-assigned or assigned as the situation dictates.

EOC Support employees must maintain contact accessibility with their supervisors and may be reassigned to an alternative operational supervisor for the duration of the disaster or emergency. EOC Support Employees who fail to report to their work assignment may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Employees who are unable to report to work should contact their supervisor by telephone. If telephone lines are down or existing conditions prevent contact by telephone, employees are to contact their work unit as soon as possible.

DEPARTMENT EMERGENCY ESSENTIAL (DEE-TIER 3)

Employees designated as Department Emergency Essential may be required to perform regular work functions during the pre-disaster, disaster, and post-disaster phases of an imminent or declared emergency. These employees may or may not be required to shelter during the storm. Examples of employees that would be assigned sheltering roles would include department personnel assigned to Department Operating Centers (DOCs) to coordinate department response and recovery efforts.

Employees in this tier may also be assigned to complete essential functions as designated in the department's Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP).

Department Heads and Managers are responsible for identifying Emergency Essential positions and shall ensure that employees are aware of individual responsibilities by communicating and notifying them of their emergency work assignment prior to the declaration of an emergency.



Employees designated as Emergency Essential must maintain contact accessibility with their supervisors. Emergency Essential employees who fail to report to their work assignment may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Employees who are unable to report to work should contact their supervisor by telephone. If telephone lines are down or existing conditions prevent contact by telephone, employees are to contact their work unit as soon as possible.

ESSENTIAL READY RESERVE (RR-TIER 4)

Employees classified as Essential Non-Emergency may be directed not to report to their regular job assignment during the pre-disaster, disaster, and post-disaster phases of a locally declared state of emergency or disaster. They may work other assignments and activities as situations necessitate. Reassignment may include, but is not limited to support of the following:

- Town Staging Area(s)
- Point of Distribution Sites (POD's)
- Food or Services Distribution Sites
- Sandbag Filling Stations
- Disaster Recovery Centers
- Emergency Operation Center

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

Once an emergency has been declared in the Town of Pembroke Park and the Town Administrative Offices are closed, the following pay procedure shall be utilized:

- All regular full-time, hourly or salaried employees, whose regular work schedule occurs during the Declared Emergency, who are instructed to not report to work or who are released from work will be paid their regular wages for all hours not worked during their regular work schedule.
- 2. All regular full-time hourly employees who work their regularly scheduled work period during a declared emergency and Town Administrative Offices are closed shall be paid their regular hourly wages at time and a half for any hour(s) worked during this period. Emergency on-call hourly personnel who report to work during an emergency situation (example: hurricane when Town Hall is closed, and non-essential employees are not required to work but are paid) will also be paid time and a half for all hours worked. This does not apply to emergency Public Works response to a water break, sewer leaks, or other work-related emergencies during the remainder of the year.
- 3. Unrepresented employees covered under this provision who physically work more than 40 hours in the workweek will be compensated at the rate of one and one-half times their normal hourly rate, in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act. Paid Administrative Leave hours shall not count as hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime.



- 4. Represented employees will be compensated in accordance with their respective collective bargaining agreement.
- 5. All regular full-time salaried employees shall be paid their regular salary for any hour(s) worked during the Declared Emergency. Additionally, such employees will be credited with one (1) hour of Administrative Leave time for each hour worked within their regularly scheduled work period up to a maximum of eight hours (8) hours during each twenty-four (24) hour period of the Declared Emergency. The maximum Administrative Leave time an employee will be eligible to receive per day will be determined by their regularly scheduled workday and shall not exceed forty (40) hours in a work week. Additionally, the twenty-four (24) hour period shall be defined as a day beginning at 12:00 midnight and ending on the next 24 hours at 11:59 p.m. This Administrative Leave credit shall not be provided to Senior Level Management positions (Department Heads, Division Managers, Assistant Directors, etc.).
- 6. Once administrative offices are reopened and other employees are called back to work, the Town Manager shall evaluate whether and how Administrative Leave time will be provided/credited to Senior Level Management employees that worked during the declared emergency. This will be evaluated on a case by case basis and shall take into consideration the number of hours worked by the employee during the declared emergency and the number of hours paid as Administrative Leave to other employees that did not work during the Preparation and Response phases of the emergency.
- 7. All regular full time hourly or salaried employees who are on prior approved leave and are not required to return to work shall be paid in accordance with the applicable leave policy.
- 8. All regular full or part time, hourly or salaried employees considered essential by their supervisor and required to report to work who call in sick, or take unscheduled leave during the period for which they were required to report to work, will be charged leave time, and may be required to submit a written certification from a health care provider substantiating the reason for absence.
- All part-time/temporary/seasonal employees who do not report to work for any reason during a Declared Emergency will not receive any compensation for this time period. This includes not reporting to work when Town operations are officially closed.
- 10. All temporary/seasonal or regularly scheduled part-time employees who work during a Declared Emergency will receive their regular rate of pay for any hours worked during this time period.
- 11. No employee is eligible for call back pay during a Declared Emergency.
- 12. Members of collective bargaining units will receive wages and benefits in accordance with their respective collective bargaining agreement.



- 13. All other terms and conditions of employment as determined by a pertinent Collective Bargaining Agreement or Town Pay Policy shall remain in effect prior to, during and after the Declared Emergency.
- 14. The Town Manager reserves the right to consider unique pay situations as they arise throughout a Declared Emergency. In situations deemed appropriate by the Town Manager, adjustments to this Policy may be made.

DOCUMENTATION

Employees are required to document and report to management all hours worked during an emergency utilizing the time sheets designated for emergencies, as provided by the Finance Department.

Time should be recorded identifying hours worked with appropriate emergency coding as provided by the Finance Department.

It is each Department's responsibility to verify all hours worked. Since departments are responsible for all wages paid to Town employees during a disaster/disaster recovery period, departments shall carefully review hours submitted, including those for alternate work assignments. All hours reported shall be verified by the employee's supervisor and approved through the timecard approval process. A copy of the Disaster Daily Log, supporting disaster hours worked, must be forwarded to the Finance Department who is responsible for coordinating payment of all emergency-related hours worked.

All Departments must maintain accurate timekeeping records during disaster/disaster recovery periods for submittal to the Finance Department.

EVENTUALITIES NOT COVERED

Exceptions may be made for unique situations as they arise throughout a declared emergency, and eventualities not covered by these guidelines shall be decided on a case-by-case basis by the Town Manager or designee.

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION

Compensation and Benefit levels are tempered by the Town's ability to pay, overall financial condition, and general fiscal responsibility to the taxpayers, as well as an individual's performance on the job. The value of a position is established in the Town's Classification Plan.

CLASSIFICATION PLAN

The position classification structure is based upon a systematic internal job evaluation and an analysis of the external labor market, which shall occur at a minimum every five years.

A comprehensive job analysis is used to establish written job descriptions for all positions which serve as the basis for all internal and external evaluations and comparisons.

Each job description includes a title, a general statement of duties and responsibilities, a determination on whether or not the position is exempt from overtime pay, a listing of essential



job functions, a statement of required knowledge, skills, and abilities, and the physical demands of the position. These factors are used to determine classification and pay range for each position.

Job descriptions shall be reviewed annually to ensure they are up to date.

Pay Ranges shall be adjusted annually depending upon resources to reflect cost of living adjustments to the system and approved by the Town Commission.

Individual employee compensation, or placement in and progression through the respective pay range, is based upon time-on-the-job, performance, qualifications, experience, education level, and other job-related factors established by a comparative ratio to ensure pay based on objective standards.

Newly hired employees shall be paid within the pay range. Any salary proposition outside of the established compensation plan must be approved by the Town Commission.

WAGES

Merit Increases

Merit increases are evaluated during the annual budget preparation process and implemented effective the start of the new fiscal year. Merit increases must be budgeted and fall within the approved compensation plan. Merit increases may be issued outside of the annual process on a case by case basis if approved by the Town Manager and/or Town Commission depending on the reporting structure.

Merit increases shall be based on an annual performance evaluation process based on clearly established standards applied equally and consistently across all positions.

Merit increases may only be given when sufficiently documented through an annual performance evaluation reflecting performance above and beyond the duties required of the assigned position.

Merit increases and Cost of Living adjustments shall only be given on an annual bonus to avoid compression of the competitively established classification and compensation plan. The maximum salary increases for Merit based increase and Cost of Living adjustment is a combined 5%. Any salary increase based on Merit or performance exceeding 5% requires Town Commission approval.

Performance Evaluations

Semi-annually, employees shall be provided with a formal evaluation of their performance by their supervisors, which may be reviewed by the Town Manager and Town Commission, or its designee. A performance evaluation is an ongoing assessment process that assists employees and employers in reaching their goals by providing a formal opportunity to develop goals and objectives, to identify strengths, and to define training or improvement programs for areas requiring development. Completion of the performance evaluation form and discussion of noted ratings shall facilitate communication and an understanding of expectations while providing a history of employee progress and development.

The results of evaluations support various employment actions and decisions such as promotion, discipline, and compensation. Employees shall have an opportunity to meet with and discuss the results of their evaluation with their supervisor and submit additional comment or points of disagreement to be included within their personnel file. Employees who receive poor performance



ratings may be placed on a performance improvement plan and/or receive progressive discipline.

Cost of Living Increase

An annual cost of living raise may be applied to the minimum and maximum ranges of the pay plan and to every individual's salary if approved by the Town Commission during the annual budget process. The maximum combined salary increase for Merit and Cost of Living adjustment is 5% annually. Any salary increases exceeding 5% for Merit or performance requires Town Commission approval.

Overtime - Exempt Employees

Exempt employees, as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) are not eligible to receive overtime compensation and are required to work the normal workweek and any additional hours needed to fulfill their responsibilities.

Time off consideration for large amounts of additional hours may be provided with the Town Manager's prior approval and at the sole discretion of the Town Manager.

Overtime - Non-Exempt Employees

Non-Exempt employees, as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), are subject to the overtime provisions of the Act. Depending on work needs not personal needs, Non-Exempt employees may be required to work overtime and are expected to work overtime upon request.

Non-exempt employees shall be compensated for overtime work at the rate of time and one-half (1.5) for all hours worked over forty (40) hours in a 7-day work week. For purposes of overtime calculation, time off (not working) with or without pay shall not be calculated as hours worked.

Compensation may be in the form of wages or compensatory time off. The Town reserves the right to substitute cash payments for accumulated compensatory time at its discretion. Similarly, employees may request that accrued compensatory time off be converted to monetary payment, which shall be made in the next applicable payroll.

Overtime including compensatory time may not be authorized by the Department Head and the Town Manager unless funds are provided for and adopted in the annual Town budget.

For non-exempt employees, overtime shall be scheduled in a manner most advantageous to the Town and consistent with the operational needs of the Town.

In some cases, at the Town's option, hours may be adjusted within a 40-hour work week to avoid overtime. Any adjustments and or overtime hours worked must be approved in advance by the employee's supervisor and must be based on work needs not personal needs.

Non-Exempt employees working overtime without prior approval shall be subject to disciplinary action.

Change in Status Pay

Promotion Pay shall be the minimum of the new pay grade or up to a 10% increase.

Temporary Reassignment to a higher pay grade and additional responsibility shall be the minimum of the new pay grade or current pay up to a 10% increase, whichever is greater. Upon return to



the former position, the pay shall return to the original pay amount. Any employee serving in an acting capacity in a higher position requires a formal Personnel Action form approved by the Town Manager. Vacant positions do not automatically designate a subordinate employee to an acting capacity.

Demotion Pay shall be calculated based on a comparative ratio formula (i.e. if employee is 50% of the way through current pay grade, the demoted salary shall be at the 50% level of the new pay grade.)

Any recommendation exceeding a 10% increase must be approved by the Town Commission.

PAY PERIODS AND DIRECT DEPOSIT

Pay periods for Town of Pembroke Park employees cover two weeks, beginning at 12:00 a.m. every other Monday. The pay period covers two seven-day work periods of 40 hours for regular employees. Paydays are every other Friday. When a payday falls on a holiday, employees shall be paid the day prior to the holiday.

All payroll payments are by direct deposit only.

TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT AND ADVANCES

On occasion, employees may be required to travel on Town business or attend professional development and training functions as a part of the job. Employees must always be mindful that they are stewards of the public's trust and resources. Work-related travel must never be abused, treated as a "perk" or seen as opportunity to spend lavishly. The Town shall not cover expenses for spouses or other non-employees during Town travel, unless prior approval is received from the Town Manager. Travel on Town business, including professional development, must demonstrate respect for the public's trust and prudence with their resources.

Expenses related to professional conferences, seminars, technical meetings, trainings, or other professional development functions may be paid by the Town or reimbursed to the employee if the expense has been adopted in the budget. Requests for reimbursements that are not included in the budget require approval from the Town Manager.

Whenever possible, a Town vehicle should be used to travel for Town business and employees should carpool to limit travel expenses. Employees who are required to use their personal vehicle for work-related travel shall be reimbursed at the rate established by the IRS for up to 250 miles. Employees are to record the exact number of miles traveled, by most direct route, from the first place of business to the next. No reimbursement shall be made for travel between home and a normal place of business.

Employees shall be reimbursed for reasonable, actual meal expenses incurred in conjunction with a program or meeting that provides a primary benefit for, or serves the best interests of, the Town. Luxury meals, costs for alcohol, or excessive reimbursement claims shall not be reimbursed without approval of the Town Manager.

Employees shall be reimbursed for reasonable, actual lodging expenses when a full day's work must be performed a considerable distance from the Town, or under other appropriate circumstances with prior Town Manager approval. Luxury lodging or excessive claims shall not be



reimbursed.

Employees should avoid using unnecessary convenience services such as valet parking, in-room movies, laundry and room service. Only under specific circumstances where a reasonable need for such services is clearly demonstrated shall such items be reimbursed.

Employees submitting reimbursement requests for travel expenses, or those requiring a travel advance, should use the appropriate form and must submit all receipts.

PROFESSIONAL & SERVICE MEMBERSHIPS

The Town encourages department heads to take part in the activities of professional and service organizations and may pay the cost of certain job-related memberships to professional organizations, job-related trainings, seminars, conferences and related events that enhance the employee's job knowledge and performance.

The Town may pay the cost to become licensed or certified in a job-related field and may pay the cost to remain so qualified. Employer-paid memberships, training, licensing and certifications are subject to budgetary approval and require advance approval.

Any employee within the Town whose position requires a professional certification must keep such certification active and current. The employee must notify their supervisor in the event such certification is lost or lapses.

EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE AND TRAINING POLICY

Subject to sufficient funds in the budget and with prior approval of the Town Manager, employees may apply for reimbursement of tuition expenses incurred for training or college courses directly related to the employee's work. The Town Manager shall be the sole judge of whether a course or program is "directly related" to the employee's work. Any employee wishing to appeal a decision rendered by the Town Manager may present an appeal to the Town Commission.

Employees must obtain approval before enrolling in a course or program.

Employees may receive reimbursement for up to 100% percent of the tuition cost for training or college courses that they take on their own initiative depending on the Town budget and individual grades earned. The reimbursement must be repaid if the employee leaves employment within twenty-four months of receipt.

GRADING/REIMBURSEMENT SCALE

A (90-100)	100% reimbursement
B (80-89)	80% reimbursement
C (70-79)	60% reimbursement
D (69-60)	0% reimbursement
F (59 and below)	0% reimbursement

<u>Courses that are deemed pass or fail will be subject to 100% reimbursement for passing grade and 0% reimbursement for failing grade.</u>



CONFERENCE AND SEMINAR POLICY

Requests to attend a conference or seminar must be budgeted and approved by the Department Head and the Town Manager.

Employees training other employees will receive a premium for the hours of actual training up to a maximum of 10% of their annual salary only for hours actually conducting the training. This policy is not applicable to the trainee, only the trainer. In order to be eligible for this benefit, the training must be a formal group training for staff and is 100% subject to approval by the Town Manager.

BENEFITS

The Town of Pembroke Park provides full time regular employees with a wide range of benefits. The type of benefits and level of benefits provided is subject to change. The Town reserves the right to change provider networks, claims agents, and insurance mechanisms. At a minimum, the Town provides Health Insurance Policy and a Retirement Policy for full time regular employees.

Detailed descriptions of current benefits are outlined in the annual summary of benefits plan.

Benefits provided to these employees may include but are not limited to Dental Insurance

Prior to an offer of employment with the Town, prospective employees shall be given a list of the various benefits offered to full-time regular employees. Questions regarding any of the listed benefits shall be referred to the Town Manager. Employees are eligible for the health insurance on the 1st of the month following thirty (30) days of employment.

CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS (COBRA)

The Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives employees and qualified beneficiaries the opportunity to continue, for a limited period, health insurance coverage under the Town's group health insurance plan when a "qualifying event" would normally result in the loss of coverage. Some common qualifying events are termination of employment (other than for gross misconduct), or death of an employee; a reduction in your hours; a divorce or legal separation; and a dependent child no longer meeting eligibility requirements.

Under COBRA, the employee pays the full cost of coverage at the Town's group rates plus an administration fee.

SHORT TERM DISABILITY BENEFIT

The Town provides group short-term disability insurance to full-time employees allowing them to receive paid leave if they are, medically, unable to return to work for a short time. For more information regarding the plan and plan details, contact Human Resources.

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

The Town participates in the State of Florida unemployment insurance program according to statutory guidelines. Terminated employees are advised to refer questions of benefit eligibility to the appropriate State office.



WORKERS COMPENSATION POLICY:

Employees who suffer job related injuries and illnesses may be entitled to medical expenses, lost income, and other compensation under the Florida Workers Compensation Act. Worker's Compensation Employees are responsible for immediately reporting any work-related injury, no matter how slight, to their supervisor. Supervisors must immediately report the incident to Human Resources for proper processing of the Workers Compensation claim.

SOCIAL SECURITY

Employees are covered by Social Security, a federally administered plan for supplemental old age retirements and survivor's insurance. Questions concerning Social Security benefits and coverage should be directed to any Social Security office.

TELECOMMUTING

Telecommuting allows employees to work at home, on the road or in a satellite location for a part of their workweek. The Town considers telecommuting to be a viable, flexible work benefit when both the employee and the job are suited to such an arrangement. Telecommuting may be appropriate for some employees and jobs but not for others. Telecommuting is not an entitlement, it is not a Townwide benefit, and it in no way changes the terms and conditions of employment with the Town.

The telecommuting benefit may only be utilized by Department Directors. Any exceptions must be pre-approved by the Town Manager.

Any telecommuting requests must be sent in writing to the Town Manager for pre-approval with a specific reason for the request. Each request will be evaluated on a case by case basis. Employees on average may utilize a maximum of 2 telecommuting days per month. Any exceptions must be pre-approved by the Town Manager.

Individuals requesting formal telecommuting arrangements must be employed with the Town for a minimum of 6 months of continuous, regular employment and must have a satisfactory performance record.

The employee is required to follow the same work schedule, unless otherwise approved by the Town Manager and be available for all meetings and communication as needed.

Employees may utilize their Town issued equipment when telecommuting. If the employee does not have a Town-issued equipment, the employee may be authorized to utilize their home equipment and remote log in to their work computer. Equipment supplied by the organization is to be used for business purposes only.

The employee will establish an appropriate work environment within his or her home for work purposes. The Town will not be responsible for costs associated with the setup of the employee's home office, such as remodeling, furniture or lighting, nor for repairs or modifications to the home office space.

Consistent with the organization's expectations of information security for employees working at the office, telecommuting employees will be expected to ensure the protection of proprietary Town information accessible from their home office. Steps include the use of locked file cabinets



and desks, regular password maintenance, and any other measures appropriate for the job and the environment.

Employees are expected to maintain their home workspace in a safe manner, free from safety hazards. Injuries sustained by the employee in a home office location and in conjunction with his or her regular work duties are normally covered by the company's workers' compensation policy. Telecommuting employees are responsible for notifying the employer of such injuries as soon as practicable. The employee is liable for any injuries sustained by visitors to his or her home worksite.

Telecommuting is not designed to be a replacement for appropriate child care. Although an individual employee's schedule may be modified to accommodate child care needs, the focus of the arrangement must remain on job performance and meeting business demands.

Telecommuting employees who are not exempt from the overtime requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act will be required to accurately record all hours worked using the Town's time-keeping system. Hours worked in excess of those scheduled per day and per workweek require the advance approval of the Town Manager. Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the immediate termination of the telecommuting agreement.

Temporary telecommuting arrangements may be approved for circumstances such as inclement weather, special projects or business travel. These arrangements are approved on an as-needed basis only, with no expectation of ongoing continuance.

OTHER INFORMAL, SHORT-TERM ARRANGEMENTS MAY BE MADE FOR EMPLOYEES ON FAMILY OR MEDICAL LEAVE TO THE EXTENT PRACTICAL FOR THE EMPLOYEE AND THE ORGANIZATION AND WITH THE CONSENT OF THE EMPLOYEE'S HEALTH CARE PROVIDER, IF APPROPRIATE. PAID AND UNPAID LEAVE

HOLIDAYS

All regular hourly employees working a minimum of thirty (30) hours per work week and all salaried employees shall be granted leave with pay on the following holidays unless otherwise provided for in a collective bargaining agreement.

Sec. 19-26.

New Year's Day
President's Day
Memorial Day
Juneteenth
Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Friday following Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day
One (1) Personal Day

All officers and employees not required by their department heads to work on such days shall be excused from work but shall be compensated for the day as if the officer or employee had performed his normal work schedule.

In order to qualify for holiday pay, the officer or employee must be present on his or her scheduled working days before and after the applicable holiday.



Officers or employees with an unexcused absence or unpaid leave time before or after a holiday shall not be eligible for holiday pay.

If an officer or employee is on authorized paid leave when a holiday occurs, that holiday shall not be charged against such officer's or employee's leave.

Effective June 19, 2021, the Town observes Juneteenth as a paid holiday. In 2021, employees may choose to observe the Juneteenth holiday as a floating holiday within the calendar year and expires on December 21st, 2021. Moving forward in 2022, Juneteenth will be observed on the actual holiday and treated as the other holidays listed above.

The floating holiday and personal holiday are use it or lose it. Employees must request the time off in the Paid Time Off Request system at least two (2) weeks in advance. Approval is subject to the Department Head's discretion based on the number of employees absent that day to ensure the department is operational and properly staffed.

Employees are eligible to use floating holidays and personal days after six (6) months of employment. Employees are eligible for paid time off on the remaining holidays listed above from their employment start date.

VACATION/ANNUAL LEAVE

Accrual Rate

Number of Months of Number of Hours

Continuous Employment Per Year 0 to 48 80.00

48 to 120 120.00 120 or more 160.00

No officer or employee shall be entitled to utilize accrued vacation time until such officer or employee shall have completed six (6) months service with the Town.

No vacation time shall be granted in advance of accrual thereof.

All vacation schedules shall be determined by the department heads giving recognition to the seniority of officers or employees in the determination of when vacation time shall be granted.

An officer or employee may use accrued vacation time for sick leave provided such officer or employee has used all existing accrued sick leave time.

An officer or employee may divide his or her vacation time as is desired with the prior approval of such officer's or employee's supervisor. Employees will use whole hours, partial hours, or full days for any PTO request.

Annual leave shall be requested in advance using the appropriate form and submitted to the department head who shall have the right to determine if the work schedule permits the absence of the employee during the requested period. Vacation leave may be denied when department operations are hindered due to staff scheduling, workload assignments or a legitimate emergency exists.



Upon reasonable notice to the employee a department head may require an employee to use annual leave.

Accumulation of Annual Leave Credits

Earned leave not used during the calendar year in which it is eligible to be taken may be carried over or accumulated to the following calendar year. Employees with accrued vacation leave in excess of eighty (80) hours and who have utilized at least eight (80) hours of leave time during the fiscal year, may be allowed to make an election during one month of the year (to be determined by the Town Manager or designee) to sell the excess vacation leave time back to the Town, subject to available funds, at the discretion of the Town Manager or designee. An employee may request the Town Manager or designee to provide an extension of those hours above the amount set forth herein for a period not to exceed twelve months. All time sold will be deduction from the vacation time accumulation.

Upon the effective date of termination of employment with the Town an employee shall be entitled to a lump sum payment for earned and unused annual leave not to exceed 400 hours. The effective date of termination shall be the last day worked.

SICK LEAVE

Accrual Rate

All full-time employees of the Town shall accrue sick leave time at the equivalent rate of one day (8 hours) for each full month of continuous service. Full month means a full calendar month starting on the first day of the month.

Rules

Sick leave is intended to be used for personal illness, injury or quarantine due to exposure to contagious disease for the employee. Sick leave may also be used for medical or health treatment which cannot be arranged outside of working hours. Sick leave may be used for illness or death in the immediate family. Immediate family is defined as the spouse, grandparents, brothers, sisters, children, and grandchildren of both the employee and the spouse. Sick leave may also be used for reasons of pregnancy and maternity. Employees shall be entitled to utilize accrued sick time immediately upon their employment start date. Any sick time off taken without accrued sick leave will be unpaid. Employees may be subject to disciplinary action for abuse of sick leave.

Conversion to Special Vacation Time

Employees shall be entitled to convert one-fourth (I/4) of each year's accrued, but unused, sick leave time to special vacation time. Such special vacation must be used during the calendar year following the one in which it was accrued. Conversion must be requested within the first two (2) weeks of a calendar year or it shall be disallowed. Thereafter, it shall be disallowed (if the conversion privileges of this paragraph have been exercised) and the credits shall revert to the employee's sick leave balance.

Payment for Accumulated Sick Leave



Every employee or beneficiary in the event of death, upon termination for whatever reason shall be entitled to receive payment for accrued sick leave. Such payment is limited to a maximum of five hundred dollars (\$500.00).

Use and Restrictions

Any officer or employee who shall utilize three (3) or more days of sick leave on a continuous basis shall submit to his department head a doctor's certificate as to the illness or injury for which sick leave was utilized.

The Town shall have the right to require a doctor's certificate for any officer or employee reporting in as sick, as well as the right to visit the place of confinement of the sick or ill officer or employee.

If an officer or employee repeatedly utilizes sick leave, the Town shall have the right at the Town's expense to require such officer or employee to submit to a physical examination by a doctor selected by the Town to determine if such officer or employee is physically fit for continued employment by the Town.

Employees are required to notify their immediate supervisor on the first day of sick leave not later than thirty (30) minutes before the shift of which they are employed is scheduled to report for duty. This shall be followed for each day the employee is unable to work unless prior approval is given by the department head. Failure to comply may result in the absence being charged as leave without pay.

In the event an employee repeatedly uses sick leave or is on leave for an extended duration, the Town shall have the right at Town expense to require the employee to submit to a physical examination by a physician designated by the Town to determine if the employee is physically fit for continued employment.

Job Injury Workers Compensation and Use of Sick Leave

Employees who are eligible to receive workers' compensation (including temporary employees) are entitled to work-related injury leave with full pay for up to five scheduled workdays (40 hours or normal number of hours scheduled in a week). This leave, for illness or injury arising out of and in the course of employment, is not charged to vacation leave or sick leave.

Absence from work of five days or more due to a work-related injury shall reduce the 12 weeks of eligibility for family/medical leave.

Employees receiving workers' compensation for job-related injuries or disease may use sick and/or vacation leave to supplement the payment up to, but not to exceed, their regular rate of pay.

After all sick and vacation leave has been exhausted, employees are not entitled to leave or pay benefits other than workers' compensation. Employees may be put into a leave without pay status during this time without adjustment in the service date.

For a regular employee disabled with a work-related injury, a position shall be held open if the department can function with the vacant position. At some point (not later than one year after the date of injury) the employee, if unable to return to work, shall be separated from Town employment. If during the one-year period following the injury the separated employee is released by the attending physician for any kind of work duty, the employee shall be entitled to benefits



under the reduction-in-force policy.

JURY DUTY

An employee required to render jury service shall be entitled to be absent from work during that service and shall be paid the difference between any payment received for jury duty and the employee's regular salary.

BEREAVEMENT/FUNERAL LEAVE

Leave may be granted by an employee's immediate supervisor without loss of pay for death in the immediate family. Up to three (3) business days or twenty-four (24) hours of pay shall be allowed an employee to attend a funeral within an immediate family. Immediate family shall include spouse, domestic partner, mother, father, children, brother, sister, grandparents, in-laws, stepchildren, grandchildren, aunt, uncle, first cousin, or anyone living in the employee's household. Employees are required to submit proof of death within 2 weeks of the bereavement leave. Proof includes a death certificate or other documents confirming the date of the death or the date of the funeral/burial/viewing service. Photographs are **not** acceptable supporting documents.

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

In accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), an employee may be eligible to request and receive an unpaid leave of absence as outlined below.

Eligibility

All regular full-time or part-time employees who have worked for the Town for at least twelve months and for at least 1,250 hours during the twelve months preceding the start of the leave shall be eligible for leave under this policy.

Conditions of Leave

Leave may be taken only for the following reasons:

The FMLA entitles eligible employees of covered employers to take unpaid, job-protected leave for specified family and medical reasons with continuation of group health insurance coverage under the same terms and conditions as if the employee had not taken leave. Eligible employees are entitled to:

Twelve workweeks of leave in a twelve-month period for:

- the birth of a child and to care for the newborn child within one year of birth.
- the placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care and to care for the newly placed child within one year of placement.
- to care for the employee's spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition.
- a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the essential functions of the employee's job.
- any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee's spouse, son, daughter, or



parent is a covered military member on "covered active duty;" or

• Twenty-six workweeks of leave during a single twelve-month period to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness if the eligible employee is the service member's spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin (military caregiver leave).

If medically necessary for a serious health condition of the employee or spouse, child, or parent, leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced leave schedule. If leave is requested on this basis, however, the Town may require an employee to transfer temporarily to an alternative position which better accommodates recurring periods of absence, provided the position has equivalent pay and benefits.

Any leave granted due solely to the birth or adoption of a child must be taken consecutively unless otherwise agreed to by the Town and must be completed within twelve months of the qualifying event.

Spouses who are both employed by the Town are entitled to a combined total of twelve weeks (rather than twelve weeks each) for the birth or adoption of a child.

Any accrued vacation/PTO/sick leave, as applicable, must be taken concurrently as part of the twelve weeks of leave requested.

In determining eligibility, the twelve-month period shall be calculated by using a rolling 12- month period measured backward from the first day of the new leave period the employee is requesting. Any requests for FMLA extensions may be granted at the sole discretion of the Town Manager.

Notification Requirements

When need for leave is foreseeable, such as the birth, adoption or placement of a child, or planned medical treatment, the employee must provide thirty days' notice to an immediate supervisor and must make efforts to schedule leave so as not to disrupt Town operations. If the need for leave is not foreseeable, notice must be given as soon as practicable, generally within one or two days of learning of the need for leave.

Request Procedures

All requests for family and medical leave should be made by contacting the Human Resource department. If possible, the request should be made thirty (30) days in advance of the effective date of the leave. The Human Resource department shall ask for the following information:

- The date FMLA leave shall begin.
- The probable/approximate duration of the leave; and
- The qualifying reason for the leave.

The employee shall be sent a packet indicating initial eligibility with instructions to complete the Certification of Physician or Practitioner form and return the form to the Human Resource department where final approval shall be determined.

If the employee takes leave without previously advising the Town of the medical or family reasons for leave and desires that leave be counted as FMLA leave, the employee must notify an immediate supervisor within two business days of returning to work that the leave was for an FMLA reason.



Status of Employee Benefits During Leave

Employee health insurance benefits shall be maintained as if the employee were actively working, but at the employee's expense. The employee must submit a check to the Finance/Payroll department to cover the amount of the employee's contribution. Payments must be made at the same time as they would normally be made through payroll deductions. Alternatively, advance payments may be made to cover an agreed upon period. The Town shall not advance the funds to pay for these benefits. If payments are missed the employee's health and life benefits shall be no longer be maintained.

Basic life insurance benefits shall continue at no additional cost to the employee. Optional life insurance and personal accident insurance (if applicable) may be continued at the employee's expense.

Benefit accruals, such as vacation, sick leave, or holiday benefits, shall be suspended during the unpaid leave and shall resume upon return to active employment.

So that an employee's return to work can be properly scheduled, an employee on medical leave is requested to provide the Town with at least two weeks advance notice of the date the employee intends to return to work. When a medical leave ends, the employee shall be reinstated to the same position, if it is available, or to an equivalent position for which the employee is qualified.

If an employee fails to return to work on the agreed upon return date, the Town shall assume that the employee has resigned.

MILITARY LEAVE

A military leave of absence shall be granted to employees who are absent from work because of service in the U.S. Uniformed Services in accordance with the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) and Florida law. Advance notice of military service is required, unless military necessity prevents such notice, or it is otherwise impossible or unreasonable.

Employees shall be paid full pay for the first thirty days of military leave in accordance with Chapter 115, Florida Statutes. After the first thirty days of military service and upon presentation of satisfactory military pay verification data, employees shall be paid the difference between their normal base compensation and the pay (excluding expense pay) received while on military duty.

Employees are entitled to up to 240 hours (annually) paid administrative leave for reserve or guard training in accordance with Section 115.07, Florida Statutes.

Continuation of health insurance benefits is available as required by Florida law and USERRA based on the length of the leave and subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of the applicable plans for which the employee is otherwise eligible.

Leave benefits shall continue to accrue during a military leave of absence.

Employees on military leave for up to thirty days are required to return to work for the first regularly scheduled shift after the end of service, allowing reasonable travel time. Employees on longer military leave must apply for reinstatement in accordance with USERRA and all applicable state laws.



An employee returning from military leave shall be placed in a position otherwise attained had employment continued or a comparable position depending on the length of military service in accordance with USERRA. The employee shall be treated as though employment were continuous for purposes of determining benefits based on length of service.

Contact the Human Resource department for more information or questions about military leave.

DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE LEAVE OF ABSENCE

In accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 741.313, any employee employed by the Town for three (3) or more months may request and take up to three (3) working days of leave from work in any 12-month period if the employee or a family or household member is the victim of domestic violence or sexual violence. The leave may be paid or unpaid, but an employee must use all applicable paid annual, personal, sick, and/or other applicable paid leave prior to being eligible for unpaid leave.

An employee seeking domestic or sexual violence leave must provide the Town with written notice of his or her request for leave as far in advance of the desired leave as possible. The request should be submitted to the Human Resource Department. If the need for leave is not foreseeable, the employee must provide notice (verbal or written) as soon as is practicable under the facts and circumstances of the case and in accordance with his or her department's procedures for unforeseeable absences.

A request for domestic violence or sexual violence leave must be supported by certification issued by an authorized person such as a health care provider, attorney of record, counselor, law enforcement agency, clergy, domestic violence advocacy agency, domestic violence center or domestic violence shelter. The certification will be sufficient if it indicates that the employee is being subjected to domestic or repeat violence, or sexual violence, and needs time off to attend to one of the matters.

To the extent possible, information regarding the employee's request for leave under this policy will be kept confidential.

If the employee took leave to obtain or receive medical and/or dental assistance for him/herself, the employee must provide a fitness for duty certification from the employee's health care provider in order to return to work. The Town will specify the information that must be provided on the fitness for duty certification. The employee must pay the cost of obtaining the fitness for duty certification and the employee is not entitled to be paid for the time or travel costs spent to obtain the certification. If the employee fails to provide such a certification before the leave ends, the Town may delay the employee's restoration to employment until the fitness for duty certification is provided to the Town. If the employee never produces the certification, the employee may be terminated from employment.

The taking of leave will not result in the loss of any employment benefits accrued prior to the date on which the leave commenced.

Upon his or her return to work from a domestic or sexual violence leave, the employee shall be entitled to: restoration to the position of employment held by the employee when leave



commenced; or restoration to an equivalent position with equivalent employment benefits, pay and other terms and conditions of employment. However, an employee taking domestic violence leave for three (3) days or less will be restored to the same position held by the employee at the time leave commenced.

An employee on domestic or sexual violence leave must periodically report to the Human Resources Department on the status and intention of the employee to return to work.

The Town prohibits discrimination or retaliation against any employee for exercising his or her rights under this policy. If an employee believes that he or she is being retaliated against, the employee must report the retaliation to the Human Resources Department.

DEFINITIONS

<u>Domestic violence</u> means any assault, aggravated assault, battery, aggravated battery, sexual assault, sexual battery, stalking, aggravated stalking, kidnapping, false imprisonment, or any criminal offense resulting in physical injury or death of one family or household member by another family or household member, or any crime the underling factual basis of which has been found by a court to include an act of domestic violence.

<u>Family or household member</u> means spouses, former spouses, persons related by blood or marriage, persons who are presently residing together as if a family or who have resided together in the past as if a family, and persons who are parents of a child in common regardless of whether they have been married. Except for persons who have a child in common, the family or household members must be currently residing or have in the past resided together in the same single dwelling unit.

<u>Sexual violence</u> means sexual violence, as defined in Florida Statutes § 784.046, or any crime the underlying factual basis of which has been found by a court to include an act of sexual violence. Florida Statutes § 784.046 defines "sexual violence" to mean any one incident of: (1) sexual battery; (2) a lewd or lascivious act, committed upon or in the presence of a person younger than 16 years of age; (3) luring or enticing a child; (4) sexual performance by a child; or (5) any other forcible felony wherein a sexual act is committed or attempted, regardless of whether criminal charges based on the incident were filed, reduced, or dismissed by the State Attorney.

UNPAID LEAVE/LEAVE WITHOUT PAY-

Any regular employee who has been employed with the Town for a period of twelve (12) continuous months may be granted a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed twelve (12) weeks. Failure to return to work at the end of the leave without pay, may be grounds for termination.

In no instances shall an employee be granted a leave without pay until all accumulated paid leave is used.

The reason for such leave shall be attributable to an extraordinary condition not directly covered by the provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Policy.

Requests for leave without pay must be submitted in writing and approved by the Town Manager.



No annual or sick leave shall be accrued while an employee is on leave without pay.

Employee health and life insurance benefits may be maintained as if the employee were actively working, but at the employee's expense. The employee must submit a check to the Finance/Payroll department to cover the amount of the employee's contribution. Payments must be made at the same time as they would normally be made through payroll deductions. Alternatively, advance payments may be made to cover an agreed upon period. The Town shall not advance the funds to pay for these benefits. If payments are missed the employee's health and life benefits shall be no longer be maintained.

Employees who qualify for a leave without pay shall initiate a request for such leave by sending a written request to their immediate supervisor. Such request shall be made not less than two (2) weeks prior to the requested leave date unless it is an unforeseeable emergency. Such request shall include the purpose of the leave and an estimate of the amount of time needed for such leave. The leave approval is 100% subject to discretion by the Town Manager.

LEAVE DONATION POLICY

The Town recognizes that employees may have a family medical emergency or be affected by a major disaster, resulting in need for additional time off in excess of their available paid time off accruals. To address this need, all eligible employees will be allowed to donate accrued sick or personal leave hours from their unused balance to their co-workers in need of additional paid time off. This policy is strictly voluntary.

- Employees must be employed with the Town for a minimum of one (1) year to donate and/or receive donated sick/personal time.
- Recipient identity will not be disclosed to the donating employees.
- Employees may not donate more than fifty percent (50%) of their current balance.
- Employees cannot borrow against future sick/personal time to donate.
- Employees who receive donated sick/personal time may receive no more than 480 hours (12 weeks) within a rolling 12-month period.

Nothing in this policy will be construed to limit or extend the maximum allowable absence under FMLA.

SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

VOLUNTARY TERMINATION

Voluntary Terminations are initiated by the employee and include

- 1. Resignation voluntary employment termination initiated by an employee.
- 2. Retirement voluntary employment termination initiated by the employee meeting age, length of service, and any other criteria for retirement from the organization.

Notice Required for Voluntary Terminations



- All regular full-time and part-time employees are requested to give a minimum of two (2)
 weeks' notice, in writing, prior to leaving Town employment in order to resign in good
 standing.
- Department heads and other management personnel are requested to give a minimum of thirty (30) days' notice in order to allow for adequate replacement in order to resign in good standing.
- 3. In the case of retirement, it is recommended that an employee provide the Town with as much notice as possible; a minimum of 6 weeks is requested. This advance notice shall ensure that retirement issues are satisfactorily addressed prior to the actual date of retirement.

DISCHARGE/INVOLUNTARY TERMINATION

Discharge is an involuntary employment termination initiated by the organization generally for cause.

LAYOFF AND RECALL

If the Town determines that a reduction in staff or "layoff" is necessary, affected employees shall be notified of the effective date, pertinent benefits information and possibility of recall, if any as soon as it is practical.

All layoffs and recalls of positions shall be based upon the Town's operational needs, financial position and the employee's employment history, performance and job-related qualifications and abilities as determined by the Town. Seniority may also be considered in making non-union layoff and recall determinations.

IMPACT ON BENEFITS

Employee benefits shall be affected by employment termination as follows. All accrued, vested benefits that are due and payable at termination shall be paid. Some benefits may be continued at the employee's expense if the employee so chooses. The employee shall be notified in writing of the benefits that may be continued and of the terms, conditions, and limitations of such continuance.

EXIT INTERVIEW

In the event of separation, voluntary or involuntary, the employee is encouraged to engage in an exit interview with the Human Resource department.

All employees who resign in "good standing" must take part in exit interviews to be eligible for rehire. The exit interview is on the clock and the employee shall be paid for participating.

RETURN OF PROPERTY

An employee separating from employment with the Town shall return all Town-owned equipment, uniforms, property, Town identification badges, and all building and equipment keys before picking up a final paycheck. The Town may not and shall not withhold earnings for failure to return



property but shall take appropriate action including legal prosecution for any Town-owned items that are not returned by a separating employee.

DISCIPLINARY ACTION

It is the intention of the Town to utilize disciplinary action in a constructive manner to motivate the employee toward proper conduct in the future. Situations of a minor nature are expected to be handled informally by the employee's immediate supervisor and may result in a verbal warning which may be documented and retained in the employee's personnel file.

Formal disciplinary action shall be administered by the Department Head in coordination with the Town Manager.

Suspensions and discharge are officially administered by the Town Manager. Department Heads may submit or be requested to submit recommendation for suspension or discharge to the Town manager for review.

Disciplinary actions may include any or all the following, which are not necessarily administered in order, nor are all types of disciplinary action required prior to discharge. The Town may immediately discharge an employee.

- 1. Verbal Reprimand is a verbal notice to an employee that his/her behavior or performance must be improved or corrected. A written record of the oral reprimand shall be placed in the employee's personnel file and a copy provided to the employee.
- 2. Written Reprimand is a written notice to an employee that his/her behavior or performance must be improved or corrected. Written reprimands shall be placed in the employee's personnel file and furnished to the employee.
- 3. Suspension is the temporary removal of an employee from duty, with or without pay. Suspensions shall vary in length depending upon the seriousness of the offense or frequency of occurrence. Suspensions shall be documented and placed in the employee's personnel file.
- 4. Discharge (also may be referred to as Dismissal or Involuntary Termination) is the removal of an employee from the employ of the Town.

Employees may submit written explanations or responses to disciplinary actions to their personnel file. In some cases, particularly discharge, an employee may have certain additional due process rights.

PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (PIP)

In efforts to rectify disciplinary action, an employee may be placed on a performance improvement plan (PIP). The purpose of this plan is to provide the employee the opportunity to correct performance and behaviors in the workplace. Employees on a PIP will be evaluated periodically by the department manager in efforts to measure progress.

A staff member whose performance, attendance, or conduct does not meet the Town's standards will receive a written warning/counseling and will be provided a clarification of expectations along with a 90-day time period to demonstrate improvement. The manager placing the employee on a PIP is required to document the meeting by outlining the topics discussed during the meeting,



goals for improvement, and activities which the employee must complete with a corresponding timeframe.

If the deficiencies are not corrected during the allotted time, termination procedures should be followed.

If staff member's performance, attendance, or conduct improve, the employee will have successfully completed the PIP and no further disciplinary action shall be taken.

CAUSES FOR DEMOTION, SUSPENSION OR DISMISSAL

A permanent employee may be demoted, suspended, or dismissed when, in the judgment of the department head the employee's work or misconduct so warrants. When the department head takes such action, he or she shall file a written notification with the Town Manager and the Human Resource department containing a statement of reasons for the action. The employee shall be notified of the effective date of the action. Employees may be demoted, dismissed, or suspended without pay for violation of these rules which include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. Violation of town and/or personnel policies, procedures or rules.
- 2. Incompetency or inefficiency in the performance of assigned duties.
- 3. Offensiveness or unequal conduct or treatment toward fellow employees or the public.
- 4. Violation of any lawful official regulation, or order, or failure to obey any lawful and reasonable direction given by a supervisor when such violation or failure to obey amounts to insubordination or serious breach of discipline which may reasonably be expected to result in lower morale in the organization or result in a loss, inconvenience, or injury to the Town's service or to the public.
- 5. Solicitation or taking for personal use a fee, gift, or other valuable thing in the course of work, or in connection with it, when such fee, gift, or other valuable thing solicited or given might be construed to be a means of receiving a favor or obtaining better treatment than that accorded other persons either on a present or future basis.
- 6. Failure to pay or make reasonable provisions for payment of just debts owed the Town in a timely manner.
- 7. Conviction of a felony or other serious crime.
- 8. Inattention to duty, tardiness to excess, laziness, carelessness, and unnecessary breakage or loss of property.
- 9. Absence from work for three (3) business days in a row without proper notification to immediate supervisor as required by the personnel policies and procedures.
- 10. The employee has been subject to an excessive number of accidents, resulting in personal injury, injury to others, and/or Town property.
- 11. The employee has been guilty of attempting to use political influence in securing or attaining a position or salary increase. Soliciting elected officials to intercede for or attempt to influence officers or supervisory employees in personnel matters shall be construed as violations of these rules.



- 12. Dishonesty in connection with assigned duties and responsibilities as an employee of the Town.
- 13. Immorality or lack of integrity in connection with assigned duties and responsibilities as an employee of the Town.
- 14. Excessive absenteeism and/or abuse of time off.
- 15. Violation of departmental rules.
- 16. Willful violation of any safety rule or practice.
- 17. Guilty of conduct unbecoming of an employee of the Town's service whether on duty, or off.
- 18. Intoxication while on duty, or use of alcoholic beverages, or any form of intoxicants, or narcotics, except such drugs as are being used upon the advice and prescription of a physician, during working hours.

None of the foregoing shall be deemed to prevent the demotion, dismissal, or suspension of an employee for any reason which is justifiable, even though such cause is not among those enumerated, provided, however, that an employee shall have the right of appeal. Any action taken against an employee for violation of these rules shall take into consideration the employee's service record.

EMPLOYEE ARREST OF CHARGE

POLICY

As a condition of employment with the Town of Pembroke Park, employees are required to notify their immediate supervisors, no later than the next working day, when an employee has been arrested or when information has been filed by a prosecuting official against him/her for an offense or violation of law and/or when the employee is indicted by a Grand Jury. This shall include, but not be limited to violation of probation, promise/notice to appear, injunction for any prohibited violent or threatening behavior, or moving traffic violations. Failure to notify shall result in appropriate disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

Under no circumstances may the employee report for duty without prior consent from the Human Resources Director following an arrest/indictment, promise to appear, or conviction.

PROCEDURE

The Town will conduct its own independent investigation taking into consideration the employee's testimony and will review any police report or other available documents. The Town will evaluate each arrest/indictment on a case by case basis taking into consideration multiple factors including:

- The nature and severity of the alleged incident or crime,
- The totality of circumstances surrounding the incident,
- The employee's job responsibilities, job location, and potential interaction with employees and the public,



- Employment record of the employee (e.g., performance, length of service, etc.)
- Circumstances that adversely affect the staff member's attendance,
- The future potential for conflict that may arise,
- Any other factors the Town, in its sole discretion, deems relevant.

If the employee pleads nolo contendere or guilty, enters into a plea agreement including pre-trial intervention or is tried and found guilty of any felonious charge and/or crime involving dishonesty or moral turpitude, the employee may be immediately terminated from Town of Pembroke Park employment. In the event such person is tried and acquitted, or the information or indictment is dismissed or quashed, the Town Manager will review his/her employment status to determine whether reinstatement or continuing employment is appropriate.

Employees arrested or indicted by a Grand Jury or on whom information has been filed by a prosecuting official for a felonious offense, a crime involving dishonesty or moral turpitude, or a charge that could be related to their work, may be placed on Administrative Leave with or without pay with approval of the Town Manager.

If an incident or charge is directly work related, or the offense is of a serious nature, nothing shall preclude the Town from initiating disciplinary action independent of any judicial hearing or proceeding.

Employees are also required to notify the Human Resources Director of the outcome of all criminal drug statute or alcohol related criminal charges on the next business day after any change in status, including the notification of a conviction, a plea of guilty, an adjudication of guilt, a plea of nolo contendere, an adjudication withheld, an acquittal or a dismissal of the charges. A failure to report a drug or alcohol conviction to the Town within the applicable time periods will result in immediate termination of the employee, unless good cause exists for the employee's failure to report the conviction to the Town

EMPLOYEE PROCEDURAL RIGHTS

INVOLUNTARY TERMINATION AND PROCEDURAL RIGHTS

The Town Manager, Divisional Directors, and Chartered Positions serve at the pleasure of the Town Commission. All other employees shall be terminated by the Town Manager.

Terminated employees have certain due process rights prior to discharge or other adverse employment decisions if they have a liberty or property interest that is affected by the adverse employment action.

Where an employment decision could be stigmatizing to the employee, and the Town intends to place a record of the action in the employee's personnel file (which makes it potentially subject to public disclosure) or if the action would foreclose a definite range of future employment opportunities, an employee shall be provided notice of the action and an opportunity to respond prior to the employment action.

Stigmatizing reasons for discipline or discharge may include dishonesty, immorality, moral turpitude, criminality, racism, harassment, falsifying forms, drug use, engaging in prostitution, use



of position to obtain kickbacks or other privileges, or other charges impugning the employee's moral character.

Charges of incompetence, negligence, poor attendance, insubordination, failure to meet performance standards, failure to submit required forms or documentation and related performance-based criteria have typically been held to be insufficiently stigmatizing to trigger a liberty interest.

In cases where public disclosure of stigmatizing information is possible, the employee shall receive oral or written notice of the charges, an explanation of the evidence and an opportunity to respond and clear his/her name prior to the decision being finalized and documented in the personnel file. The employee shall direct their response to the Town Manager, who may consult with the Town Attorney, Mayor and/or Commission as needed.

This process is a procedural protection and in no way limits the Town's at-will employment status. The findings of the Town Manager are final, shall be stated in writing and provided to the employee as well as documented within the personnel file.

RIGHT OF APPEAL

Any permanent employee who is discharged may appeal such action in writing to the Town Manager within fifteen (15) business days after such action is taken. As promptly as possible, the employee shall be granted a hearing by the Town Manager and the department head concerned, at which time the employee and immediate supervisor may present relevant evidence regarding the action and the reasons, therefore. When the disciplinary action is personally initiated by the Town Manager, the hearing shall be conducted by the Town Commission. During any investigation or hearing, the Town Manager, or the Town Commission may direct any employee to attend and give testimony. Probationary employees who are terminated during the probation period are not permitted the right of appeal.

Any permanent employee who is demoted or suspended may appeal such action by filing a written grievance in keeping with the Town's grievance procedures. Any such grievance shall be filed within fifteen (15) working days from the date of action against the employee.

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

The Town intends to provide a constructive, positive work environment in which employees are empowered to contribute to the continuous improvement in the operations and services provided by the Town. To this end a formal grievance procedure is available to help resolve complaints of employees who believe they are not receiving fair treatment in the workplace.

STEP 1: Verbal Communication with Supervisor

Employees are encouraged to share their suggestions, as well as discuss any complaints or issues that may arise related to their employment and work environment with their immediate supervisor within five (5) working days from the time of the occurrence. The supervisor shall provide a verbal response to the complaint within five (5) working days of the discussion with the employee.

STEP 2: Written Communication with Department Head



Should an employee not find adequate resolution through verbal discussion with their immediate supervisor, the employee shall respond in writing to the employee's department head within five (5) working days from the oral response in Step 1.

The employee shall submit a written grievance to their department head which must include:

- ✓ Date of incident,
- ✓ Description of incident,
- ✓ Summary of previous discussion(s) with supervisor regarding the incident,
- ✓ Desired resolution, and
- ✓ Employee's printed name, signature and date of submission.

The department head shall provide a written response to the employee within five (5) working days of the receipt of the grievance.

STEP 3: Written Communication with Town Manager

If the grievance is not resolved in the first two steps, the employee may request a meeting with the Town Manager. This request must be in writing, dated and submitted within five (5) working days after receiving the response from Step 2. The department head shall be copied on the request.

The meeting with the Town Manager and the employee shall occur within ten (10) working days of receipt of the request to meet, or on a date mutually convenient for all parties. At the Manager's discretion this meeting may include the department head and/or supervisor, and/or other Town representatives as appropriate. At the employee's option, the meeting may include a fellow employee or other representative.

The Town Manager, or designated representative, shall provide a written response to the employee within ten working days of the meeting. The Town Manager's response to the grievance is final.



WORK RULES AND CODE OF CONDUCT

The workplace brings together many different types of people whose unique perspectives and individual skills and talents add tremendous value to the Town of Pembroke Park. All employees, officers, and volunteers, at every level within the organization, are expected to treat each other as respected and valuable colleagues. Employees are required to engage respectfully with elected or appointed officials in all forms of communication, both verbal and written.

CODE OF ETHICS

Employees and officials of the Town of Pembroke Park are bound by the both the State of Florida and the Town's Code of Ethics.

FLORIDA CODE OF ETHICS FOR PUBLIC OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

Chapter 112 (Part III) of the Florida Statutes and the "Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees" which states in part, that "no officer or employee of a state agency or of a county, city or other political subdivision of the state shall have any interest, financial or otherwise, direct or indirect, engage in any business transaction or professional activity or incur any obligation of any nature which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of his duties in the public interest."

All Town employees shall be furnished with a copy of Florida Statutes Chapter 112 (Part III) during their orientation. All employees are required to review the Statute along with the employment Rules and Regulations for their respective department. This information shall serve as a guide for employee conduct while in the employ of the Town.

PEMBROKE PARK EMPLOYEE CODE OF ETHICS

Article IX, Chapter 2, 260 of the Town Code states, "Employees of the Town hold their positions to serve and benefit the public, and not for obtaining unwarranted personal or private gain in the exercise and performance of their official duties. Further, Town employees must act in a manner that promotes public trust and confidence in government with complete transparency and honesty in their services and must avoid even the appearance or perception of impropriety. The Town Commission recognizes that, in the furtherance of these fundamental principles, there is a need for clear and reasonable standards of ethical conduct. This Pembroke Park Employee Code of Ethics establishes those standards." The following sections provide the expected code of conduct employees of the Town shall follow.

Gifts

Town employees shall not solicit or accept any gift, regardless of value, in their official capacity as employees, nor shall they solicit or accept any gift in either an official or personal capacity that may be reasonably perceived to be given to encourage or discourage them from taking any action in connection with their Town employment.

Lobbying

Town employees should avoid even the appearance of impropriety in their interaction and dealings with lobbyists registered with the Town and in their interaction and dealings with Town vendors and prospective vendors.



To promote full and complete transparency, lobbyists, Town vendors, and prospective vendors who intend to meet or otherwise communicate with a Town employee, either at such employee's office or elsewhere on Town government premises, for the purpose of influencing a decision to be made by the Town Commission, a decision to be made by any decision-making body under the jurisdiction of the Town Commission, or a final procurement decision to be made by a Town employee, must complete a contact log as prepared and maintained by the Town Manager. This contact log shall be completed for each individual Town employee with whom the lobbyist, Town vendor, or prospective vendor intends to meet or communicate. The contact log shall be legibly completed contemporaneously with the meeting and shall be available for public inspection in a database designated by the Town Manager.

To further promote full and complete transparency, a Town employee shall disclose any meeting outside of his or her Town office, any telephonic discussion, or electronic communication with a registered lobbyist, Town vendor or prospective vendor, during or in which meeting, discussion or other communication the lobbyist, Town vendor, or prospective vendor seeks to influence a decision to be made by the Town Commission, decision to be made by any decision-making body of the Town, or a final procurement decision to be made by a Town employee.

A Town employee is prohibited from lobbying on behalf of an outside principal or employer for compensation, Town Commissioners, members of any Town Selection/Evaluation committee, or the governmental unit in which he or she is employed. Lobbying does not include providing information, advice or recommendations to any Town Commissioner or member of a Selection/Evaluation committee in furtherance of the employee's job responsibilities. Except as stated in this paragraph, Town employees may engage in lobbying activities provided such activities would not be inconsistent with their public duties or the provisions of Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.

Outside Employment

For purposes of this section, other employment means any compensated employment performed by a Town employee aside from his or her employment with the Town, including any part-time employment, self-employment, or consultant-related employment. Town employees may engage in other employment provided:

- 1. The other employment will not be inconsistent with the employee's public duties or the provisions of Chapter 112, Florida Statutes; or
- 2. The individual or business entity for whom the Town employee will engage in other employment is not a vendor under contract with Town or a prospective vendor seeking to do business with Town.

Prohibition on Use of Town Position for Personal or Private Gain

No Town employee shall use his or her municipal position or powers and duties to secure a financial benefit for himself or herself, an immediate family member or any private organization in which he or she is deemed to have an interest.

Future Employment

No Town employee may ask for, pursue or accept a private post-government employment opportunity with any person or organization that has a matter requiring the exercise of discretion



pending before the Town employee, either individually or as a member of a Town Committee, while the matter is pending or within the 30 days following final disposition of the matter.

Use of Town Resources

Town resources shall be used solely for lawful Town purposes. Town resources include, but are not limited to, Town personnel, and the Town's money, vehicles, equipment, materials, supplies or other property.

No Town employee may use or permit the use of Town resources for personal or private purposes, but this provision shall not be construed as prohibiting:

- 1. Any use of Town resources authorized by law or Town policy.
- 2. The use of Town resources for personal or private purposes when provided to a Town officer or employee as part of his or her compensation; or
- The occasional and incidental use during the business day of Town telephones and computers for necessary personal matters such as family care and changes in work schedule.

Nepotism

No Town employee or consultant may participate in any decision specifically to appoint, hire, promote, discipline or discharge an family member for any position at, for, or within the Town.

Political Solicitations

No Town employee shall directly or indirectly compel or induce a subordinate employee to make, or promise to make, any political contribution, whether by gift of money, service or other thing of value.

No Town employee may act or decline to act in relation to appointing, hiring or promoting, discharging, disciplining or in any manner changing the official rank, status or compensation of any Town employee, or an applicant for a position as a Town employee, on the basis of the giving or withholding or neglecting to make any contributions in money or service or any other valuable thing for any political purpose.

Elected Public Office

A Town employee seeking elected public office is not permitted to engage in any activity related to seeking the office during working hours or in other ways which might constitute an inappropriate use of Town time and resources or lead to the impression that the Town government endorses his or her candidacy.

The prohibition against the use of Town time and resources in a campaign for elective office includes a ban against using Town equipment, including vehicles, telephones, copy machines, inter-office mail, or other equipment owned by the Town. The employee/candidate is prohibited from participation in campaign activities off duty wearing a Town uniform or driving a Town vehicle.

Town employees are prohibited from soliciting campaign contributions or any in kind gifts to support his or her campaign, including soliciting campaign workers or contributions from among Town employees when the solicitation takes place on duty or when the solicitation could be



reasonably construed as having a connection to a real or expected employment decision. The employee/candidate for public office must avoid the appearance or reality of a conflict of interest between their employment with the Town and the outside candidacy.

A Town employee choosing to run for elected public office must disclose his/her candidacy to the employee's immediate supervisor and the head of their Department within three (3) business days after the time the employee becomes an official candidate by filing the necessary candidate papers. All campaign-related activities by an employee/candidate occurring before official candidacy are also subject to these restrictions.

The employee/candidate must take reasonable steps, with approval by his or her supervisor, to minimize the prospect of a conflict of interest between the employee/candidate's work duties and campaign activities. These steps may include the use of annual leave, personal days, or unpaid leave of absence following approval in advance by his/her supervisor pursuant to Town policies.

Confidential Information

No Town employee who acquires confidential information in the course of exercising or performing his or her powers or duties may disclose or use such information unless the disclosure or use is required by law or in the course of exercising or performing his or her official powers or duties.

Enforcement Procedures

The authority to investigate alleged violations of the Pembroke Park Employee Code of Ethics is vested in the Town Manager. A Town employee may appeal the decision of the Town Manager by filing a written appeal to the Town Commission within fifteen (15) business days of the final decision of the Town Manager is rendered. The Town Commission may affirm, modify or reverse the disciplinary decision rendered by the Town Manager.

The authority to investigate alleged violations of the Pembroke Park Employee Code of Ethics by the Town Manager, Directors or any Chartered Position is vested in the Town Commission.

Town Commission shall have the authority to investigate alleged violations of the Pembroke Park Employee Code of Ethics when the Town Manager fails to do so, or when the Town Commission determines that such investigation is required.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

It is the policy of the Town of Pembroke Park to comply fully with the Freedom of Information Act. All individuals are entitled to certain and specific information regarding the affairs of government and the actions of public officials and public employees.

All FOIA requests are to be immediately directed to and processed by the Town Clerk or his/her designee. Requests for public information may be either oral or written and ideally are handled within five business days after the request has been received. In some cases, an extension may be required, and certain information may be denied or redacted. Originals of any documents shall not be allowed to leave Town property, and the costs associated with compiling and providing the information shall be charged.

PUBLIC RECORDS



Under no circumstance may an employee remove documents, photos, reports, personal or personnel information or any sensitive material that is the property of the Town of Pembroke Park.

Employees found to be in violation of this policy may be disciplined, up to and including discharge.

PERSONAL CONDUCT

All persons employed by the Town must remain constantly aware of their responsibilities to the public and of the fact that they are representatives of the Town. It is expected that their conduct and appearance shall be commensurate with the positions which they hold.

Town employees are frequently called upon to express opinions and to provide information concerning the Town government, its operations and its policies. Expressions of opinions should be carefully weighed in the light of their probable affect and should be based upon facts within the knowledge of the employee. A Town employee is not deprived of the rights of citizenship which affords the right of free speech. He should be keenly aware of responsibilities and privileges as an employee of the Town and understand that personal opinions shall often be interpreted by others as representing the official opinion of the Town.

Employees shall be well informed concerning the policies and operations of Town government. Such responsibilities increase with the importance of the position held. Admitting lack of knowledge concerning a question asked is far superior to an incorrect answer, but if the situation requires it, the employee, under such circumstances, should refer the questioner to the proper source of information or obtain the actual facts and inform the person making the inquiry.

Employees are expected to refrain from repeating rumors and from creating dissension within the organization.

Employees shall visit departments other than those in which employed only on official business. Reasonable breaks in routine work may be taken as long as the privilege is not abused but loitering is expressly forbidden. Any employee who has completed assigned tasks, or the work for which that employee is responsible shall report to a supervisor for assignment of other duties.

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT GUIDELINES

Full-time Town employees wishing to hold supplemental, part-time employment in addition to his or her Town employment must request approval in writing to their department head and must do so each year that supplemental employment is held on their Town anniversary date.

The request should include the:

- Name of the employer.
- Nature of the employment and duties to be performed; and
- Approximate number of hours to be worked per week.

The Town Manager shall determine whether a conflict of interest exists or if the employee's ability to effectively perform their Town work shall be hampered and shall inform the employee in writing of his or her determination.

A conflict of interest may include, but is not limited to:



- Any employment, activity, or enterprise which involves for private gain the use of the Town's time, facilities, equipment, supplies, or prestige or influence of the Town Office.
- Any activity which involves receipt or acceptance of any money or other consideration from anyone other than the Town for performance of an act with the employee should be required or expected to render in the regular course of their Town employment.
- Any activity which involves a performance of an act other than in their capacity as a Town
 employee which may later be subject to the control, inspection, review, or enforcement by the
 employee or the department in which they work; or
- Any activity which involves so much of an employee's time that it impairs their attendance or efficiency in the performance of their duties.

Employees may not wear a Town uniform, work shoes/boots, or any other apparel furnished by the Town in performing outside work. Outside work may not be performed during regularly scheduled Town work hours or at a Town facility, and no Town resources, equipment, tools or supplies may be used for outside work.

POLITICAL ACTIVITY AND VOTING TIME

All employees should register to vote and should exercise this privilege at each opportunity afforded. It is Town policy that it is in the public interest and at governmental benefit to remove career employees from the arena of partisan political activity. Florida statutes impose certain restrictions on the political activities of state, county, and municipal officers and employees.

Also, those employees in positions supported in whole or in part by Federal funds may be subject to those restrictions contained in the federal "Hatch Act." The following prohibitions shall apply to all Town officers and employees:

- No person shall promise, attempt, or use political position, influence, or coercion in an effort to erode the merit system nature of the Town work force by patronage or favoritism for past or future political influences or services, either implied or actual.
- The Town of Pembroke Park shall not permit the use of its equipment, property, facilities or supplies for partisan political purposes.
- Employees shall not take an active political role on behalf of any candidate or incumbent for Town elective office.
- Employees shall not be solicited for contributions or any other sort of support or influence for any political party, office, or candidate, either from other employees, superiors, elected officials, or candidates.
- A Town employee who becomes a candidate for any public elective office shall, at the time of formally qualifying, resign in good standing from the Town service in accordance with Florida elections and resign to run applicable laws.

Violations of any of these restrictions shall result in disciplinary action including discharge, as determined by the provisions of these rules.

Full-time regular employees shall be granted one (1) hour off to vote at the start or end of their shift,



provided such time does not result in the Town having to replace employees at overtime rates of pay and coverage is maintained in, each department.

Employees interested in utilizing voting time must request the use of such time at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of using such time. Granting the use of such time under all conditions shall be made at the discretion of the department head.

Active political campaigning or solicitations for political contributions while on duty is strictly prohibited.

POLITICAL ACTIVITY AND GENERAL SOLICITATION

The Town does not discourage political participation or activity. However, certain restrictions are imposed to ensure the integrity and impartiality of the Town. In this regard:

- Employees of the Town shall not engage in political activities on behalf of a candidate for partisan or non-partisan election during those hours when the employee is being compensated for the performance of his/her duties as a Town of Pembroke Park employee. This includes distributing or circulating literature or paraphernalia for or against an issue or candidate.
- Solicitation and/or distribution of literature, including signing and circulating petitions for candidates, propositions and other political matters, is prohibited during working hours or in work areas. Working hours include the actual working time of both the individual performing the solicitation or distribution and the employee to whom it is directed.
- Employees of the Town shall not solicit, receive or in any way participate in soliciting or receiving
 any assessment, subscription or contribution for any political party or any political purpose
 whatsoever, during those hours when the employee is being compensated for the performance of
 his/her duties as a Town of Pembroke Park employee.
- Employees involved with political campaigns shall do so as private citizens. Employment status with the Town shall not be referenced when campaigning for or against any candidate or ballot issue, question or proposal. Employees involved with political activity shall neither claim to represent the Town nor claim their views or opinions reflect the views or opinions of the Town.
- Equipment, materials and supplies belonging to the Town, including the Town's letterhead, business cards or other such material supplied by the Town, shall not be used in support of political activities.

Employees who become candidates for the Town Commission of the Town of Pembroke Park shall be required to take a leave of absence without pay when that employee complies with the candidacy filing requirements or sixty (60) days before any election relating to that position, whichever date is closest to the election. Employees who are elected to Town Commission must resign their Town employment prior to the commencement of their term of office.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

The Town of Pembroke Park always requires employees to represent the Town in a positive manner and treat customers and residents with courtesy and respect .

Employees should be prepared to listen patiently to complaints and deal with them in a helpful, professional manner. Residents or customers who become unreasonable, abusive or harassing should be



referred to the employee's supervisor.

PUBLIC STATEMENT/PRESS CALLS

Unless otherwise delegated, the Town Manager is the official designated spokesperson for Town staff. Employees should refer all requests for formal statements, interviews, and related activities to the Town Manager. Employees may not make formal statements on behalf of the Town, except in cases of sharing routine, information, without prior authorization.

THE WORKPLACE AND TOWN RESOURCES

APPEARANCE

Your appearance is important to demonstrating the professionalism of Town organization. For this reason, each employee is expected to report for work each day with appropriate hygiene, appearance and attire for his or her position.

Personal cleanliness is a must for all employees. Body odors, strong perfume or smoke may all be particularly offensive to the public or coworkers. Employees should take pride in their personal hygiene and appearance and report to work clean and groomed appropriately.

Attire should be consistent with job responsibilities and should not jeopardize the safety of the employee or distract others. Anyone reporting to work in inappropriate clothing shall be sent home to change.

It is impossible to describe or define every possible acceptable or unacceptable example of attire. Clothing should be in keeping with the image of a professional organization; the following is prohibited:

- Excessively worn, torn or dirty clothing,
- Clothing with suggestive or offensive logos, pictures, insignia, etc.,
- Very tight, revealing or otherwise sexually suggestive clothing, and
- Exercise attire including "sweats"

If in doubt, ask prior to wearing the item. Your supervisor shall determine whether attire is acceptable.

USE OF TOWN RESOURCES

Vehicles, materials, facilities and equipment owned by the Town are intended for Town business use only. Further, Town employees are expected to perform work related only to Town business while on work time. Specifically:

- 1. <u>Mail & Letterhead</u> Employees may not use the Town's postage for personal mail. Additionally, employees should not routinely receive personal mail or package deliveries while at work. Town letterhead is to be used for official Town business only.
- 2. <u>Phone</u> All phone lines are to be kept available for the Town's business. Personal calls must be held to a minimum. Employees are expected to reimburse any expense



- associated with personal long-distance calls or excessive personal calls made using a Town telephone.
- 3. <u>Cell Phone</u> Personal calls on Town cell phones are to be held to a minimum and are allowed provided only where personal use does not result in an overage of the contracted minutes. If the minutes are exceeded, the employee is required to pay the additional charges or costs.
- 4. <u>Vehicles</u> Town-owned vehicles are to be used for official Town business only, unless otherwise approved by the Town Manager.
- Equipment, Facilities and Supplies Equipment, facilities and supplies are to be used for Town business only, including tools, machinery, computers, copiers, faxes and other office machines.
- 6. <u>Personnel</u> Town personnel are only to perform work related to Town business and/or projects while on work time.

The Town's resources, including Town vehicles, may not be borrowed for personal use by employees.

EMPLOYEE IDENTIFICATION

It is the policy of the Town of Pembroke Park that all employees be photographed as a method of establishing proper identification and records for the employee. The identification shall be handled by the IT department during orientation.

The IT department shall issue picture identification cards to all employees except for the Fire Department.

Town identification cards are to be presented upon request. The cards are only to be used for employment purposes.

Upon separation of employment, identification cards shall be turned into the employee's department and submitted to the IT department along with a completed "Town Property Form" which shall authorize the tendering of the employee's last paycheck.

Employees are to report lost identification cards immediately. Replacement identification cards shall be reissued at a fee of five dollars (\$5.00) each.

Upon expiration, the identification card is to be exchanged for a new card.

Identification cards shall expire five (5) years from the date of issuance and it shall be the employee's responsibility to get a new one from the IT department.

KEY DISPERSAL

Keys to Town buildings, facilities, vehicles or equipment may be issued to employees. Keys should never be duplicated, given or lent to anyone else, including a fellow employee, without prior approval from the Department Director. Lost or stolen items must be immediately reported to the Town Manager. All keys must be returned to the original employee immediately to prevent lost keys.



UNIFORMS AND SAFETY ATTIRE

The Town may issue directly, provide allowance for, or reimburse employees in certain departments for safety attire, work shoes/boots, uniforms, etc. These items are to be clean and worn with reasonable care. The Town shall replace worn or damaged items as needed and within reason, generally not more than once per year. Town attire or uniforms are considered Town property and are to be worn while on duty for Town business only.

PERSONAL ARTICLES IN THE WORKPLACE & SEARCH OF PROPERTY

The Town is not responsible for lost or damaged personal articles brought into the workplace. All property belonging to the Town, including Town vehicles, computers, phones, desks, file cabinets, lockers and other storage areas, is subject to inspection or search at any time without notice to retrieve work-related materials or to investigate a violation of workplace rules. Employees should not have any expectation to privacy regarding Town premises.

PERSONAL WORKSPACE & DISPLAYS

Personal workspace is also considered property of the Town and is oftentimes accessible and viewable by co-workers and the public. Reasonable, tasteful displays of personal pictures, decorations, and related items are acceptable. However, any personal displays that violate harassment, code of conduct, or other policies shall be addressed as a violation according to those procedures. Your department head and/or the Town Manager have the final authority to determine what is acceptable.

SMOKE-FREE WORKPLACE

In its commitment to providing a safe, healthy, and comfortable workplace for all employees, the Town of Pembroke Park maintains a smoke and tobacco-free environment. No smoking or other use of tobacco products (including, but not limited to, cigarettes, pipes, cigars, snuff, electronic cigarettes, or chewing tobacco) is permitted in any Town workspace (indoor and outdoor) or in vehicles owned, leased, or rented by the Town.

The Town of Pembroke Park does not employ individuals who have used tobacco products within twelve (12) months of submitting an employment application. All applicants for employment must sign an affidavit certifying that they have not used tobacco or tobacco products for at least twelve (12) months immediately preceding the date of application. Furthermore, an employee is prohibited from using tobacco products during his or her employment with the Town of Pembroke Park.

Compliance with the smoke-free workplace policy is mandatory for all employees. Employees who violate the policy are subject to corrective action, up to and including termination from employment.

Any employee who observes a violation of this policy should report it immediately to the Human Resources Director.

CARE OF EQUIPMENT

Employees are expected to follow prescribed safety procedures for equipment and vehicle usage,



refrain from and/or report equipment abuse and guard against equipment loss.

Should an employee encounter equipment malfunction or be involved in an accident, the incident should be immediately reported to the appropriate supervisor or department head. Intentional equipment abuse, careless use of equipment, or habitual loss of equipment shall not be tolerated and may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

VEHICLE USAGE

The Town allows certain job classifications to use Town-owned vehicles with prior supervisor approval.

- Employees who use their personal vehicles for Town business shall be reimbursed in accordance with the Florida mileage reimbursement rate.
- Any employee driving on Town business, whether using their own vehicle or the Town's,
 must have a valid Florida driver's license and a satisfactory driving record. Any restrictions
 on, or revocation of, an employee's legal right to drive must be immediately reported to
 the appropriate department head. The same applies for employees diagnosed with a
 medical condition which temporarily or permanently affects their ability to drive.
 Employees driving Town vehicles may be subject to regular driving history/DMV checks.
- Employees who drive a vehicle on Town business must exercise due diligence to drive safely, observe all traffic laws, speed limits and related rules of the road, and maintain the security of the vehicle and its contents. The use of hand-held cellphone is **prohibited** while operating vehicles.
- When riding in or operating the Town vehicles, safety belts shall be worn by all.
- Employees shall promptly report to their supervisor or Department Head any accident with any Town vehicle that is operated by them or in their charge. Notification should be made to the local police agency so that a report can be prepared.
- If, in the event of an accident, carelessness or negligence on the part of the operating employee is determined to be a contributing factor, charges will be brought against the employee, leading up to termination. Drivers are responsible for any driving infractions or fines that result from their driving and must report them to their supervisor.
- No one other than authorized Town employees is authorized to drive or ride in Town vehicles, unless prior approval has been obtained from the Town Manager.
- Employees may transport citizens in the Town vehicles only for an authorized purpose, and/or with the approval of a Department Head.
- Smoking is strictly prohibited in Town vehicles.

TAKE HOME VEHICLES

Employees with an assigned take home vehicle will be subject to a bi-weekly taxable fringe benefit as per the IRS Commuting Rule. The Town does not allow the employee, nor any individual whose use would be taxable to the employee, to use the vehicle for personal purposes other than for commuting or de minimis personal use (such as a stop for a personal errand on the way between



a business delivery and the employee's home).

CREDIT CARDS

The Town recognizes that in certain instances, it is in its best interests to issue a Town credit card to certain employees. Town credit cards are limited to employees in positions that demonstrate that having a credit card shall assist them in performing their assigned responsibilities. Any issuance of a Town credit card must first be authorized by the Town Manager.

The credit card may only be used for the purchase of goods or services related to the official business of the Town. It is not to be used for any personal business.

Any employee that is issued a Town credit card is responsible for the card's protection and custody and shall immediately notify the Finance Director, if the card is lost or stolen.

The issuance of a Town credit card is a privilege that may be revoked at any time. Any card holder found in violation of this policy may be forced to surrender the card and may be subject to discipline. Employees shall surrender their Town credit card upon request, including at the time of termination.

SAFETY

The Town believes in maintaining safe and healthy working conditions for its employees. Establishment and maintenance of a safe work environment is the shared responsibility of the Town and employees from all levels of the organization. The Town will attempt to do everything within its control to assure a safe environment and compliance with federal, state and local safety regulations. Employees are expected to obey safety rules and to exercise caution in all their work activities. All perceived safety hazards are to be reported immediately to the Town Manager, Department Supervisor, or the Human Resources department.

Employees are expected to continually be on the lookout for unsafe working conditions or practices. If an employee observes an unsafe condition, the employee should warn others, if possible, and report that condition to the Town Manager, Department Supervisor, or the Human Resources department immediately. If an employee has a question regarding the safety of the workplace and practices, ask a supervisor for clarification. Any issues on safety will be investigated and rectified to ensure employees safety at work.

To achieve the goal of providing a safe workplace, each employee must be safety conscious. The Town encourages employees to provide suggestions to enhance the work experience through comments, suggestions, or complaints.

GENERAL SAFETY RULES:

- OSHA approved footwear is to be worn if deemed required by department.
- All issued Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) such as eyewear, back braces, hard hats, safety vests, hearing protection and all others are always to be used as appropriate for the task assigned.
- All employees must follow the standard method of lifting. If the load is over twenty-five (25) pounds, back braces are required to be worn. If the load is over fifty (50) pounds, you must obtain assistance.



- All spills, broken glass, debris or any other hazard, must be cleaned up if you are assigned to
 complete such activities and if you are not able to complete the cleanup, you are to report
 the issue to a supervisor or Department Head immediately.
- Any defective tools/equipment/machines must be taken out of service and reported to a supervisor or Department Head immediately.
- All machines/equipment must be operated in a safe manner. Shut off/unplug any machines/equipment before making any adjustments, cleaning or repairs.
- Report all accidents or injuries to your supervisor or Department Head immediately. You
 must complete the required written reports as required as soon as possible. This report
 should be forwarded to the Human Resources department immediately. Failure to file the
 required reports, may lead to delays in the subsequent investigations which can affect
 medical benefits and possible disciplinary action.
- Any employees that come into contact with any type of body fluids/waste must adhere to the Center for Disease Control Universal Precaution Guidelines.
- All unknown materials are to be considered hazardous and appropriate precautions taken.
- Filing false statements, reports, timesheets and all other documents constitutes a falsification of records and is subject to immediate termination.
- MP3 Players, headphones and all similar type devices during working hours is prohibited except for authorized break and lunch periods. Single ear Bluetooth devices for phone use is permitted.

BUILDING SECURITY

In order to ensure the security of the Town Hall, all visitors will be required to be escorted by Town personnel while in secured areas. All visitors must report to the receptionist and advise their reason for being in the building. The front door to Town Hall will always be locked, and all visitors will enter through the rear door.

After Town Hall working hours, the rear door to Town Hall will be locked, and visitors are to utilize the intercom at the rear of Town Hall to request admittance. During this after-hours period, caution should be exercised when admitting persons to utilize the telephone, restrooms, or water fountain as the building is closed. Any person that is found in the secured areas of the building who is unknown should be challenged as to their business in Town Hall.

The following visitors do not require escort; however, their movements should be limited: Any Government Official (Town of Pembroke Park, other Municipalities, County, US Government). family members of employee, visitors who are personally known, recognized, or whose purpose (such as repairman) has been previously announced.

ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

The Acceptable Use Policy establishes a minimum set of rules of behavior for users of Town of Pembroke Park (TPP) IT (Information Technology) resources. Personal and Contractor owned devices that are connected to TPP systems or used to store TPP or client related data are also considered IT resources.

ENFORCEMENT



Users of IT Resources who violate these rules of behavior may be subject to company disciplinary action and/or criminal prosecution. Such action will be at the discretion of the appropriate TPP management in conformance with the Disciplinary Action Policy section in the employee handbook and TPP Information Security Policy. Third party users who violate these rules of behavior may be subject to account revocation and/or

ETHICAL AND APPROPRIATE USE

TPP provides the IT Resources to assist users in performing their job responsibilities. The resources are to be used for legitimate and authorized business purposes only. Incidental and reasonable personal use of TPP's IT Resources (e.g. Internet, email) is acceptable, if it does not consume more than a trivial amount of Company resources (financial, bandwidth, etc.), adversely affect the intended business use of the IT Resources, or impair a user's job performance.

The display of any sexually explicit image, document or text on any IT Resources is prohibited and in violation of TPP's sexual harassment policies. Sexually explicit material may not be accessed, archived, stored, distributed, edited or recorded using any IT Resources. Material that is, or could reasonably be regarded as, derogatory or discriminatory based on race, sex, religion, national origin, age, sexual orientation or disability, or is fraudulent, harassing, embarrassing, profane, obscene, intimidating, defamatory or otherwise unlawful, may not be sent, either within TPP or from TPP to someone outside TPP, by email or other form of electronic communication (such as bulletin board systems, newsgroups and chat groups) or displayed or stored using IT Resources.

In their use of IT Resources, users must comply with all state, federal and international laws, including the laws and regulations of any state, city, province or other jurisdiction and any laws

governing intellectual property and online activities. Users are prohibited from using TPP's IT Resources for any other business solicitation or profitmaking activities. Without prior written permission of the Chief Information Officer, IT Resources may not be used for dissemination or storage of commercial or personal advertisements, solicitations or promotions

USER MONITORING AND PRIVACY

Users acknowledge that they have no expectation of privacy regarding their activity on TPP IT Resources.

All TPP IT Resources are always subject to monitoring and auditing. Users should expect that electronic communication may be accessed by authorized supervisors, local system administrators, Information Security, Legal and Human Resources with or without the permission of the employee. However, no other users may monitor or access IT Resources of another user without the express approval of the Chief Information Officer and Chief Human Resources Officer

PASSWORDS AND USER IDS

Passwords for all TPP IT Resources are considered private and confidential. Users are prohibited from sharing any of their system passwords with anyone.

Note: In the process of troubleshooting an end user issue with an IT Resource over the phone or in person, a Technical Support associate may need to reset a users' password. If the user has any reason to question any aspects of the way the Technical Support technician is handling the



situation, they should contact mpakula@townofpembrokepark.com. Technical Support Technicians WILL NOT send notifications directing users to change an existing password to a specific password; or otherwise solicit their password to be submitted via message. Such methods are often unsolicited attempts on public services such as banking to obtain unauthorized access to an account. If this happens, contact mpakula@townofpembrokepark.com

To minimize the risk of compromising systems as a result of poor password selection, users are responsible or selecting passwords that are difficult to break. **Wherever technically supported and not configured centrally,** the following password criteria should be employed:

- Passwords must be a minimum of 8 Characters.
- Passwords should have 3 or more of the following types of characters:
 - Lowercase characters
 - Uppercase characters
 - Numbers
 - Symbols
- Passwords must be changed every 120 days, and passwords must not be re-used for at least 6 iterations.
- Dictionary words, derivatives of User IDs, and common character or easily guessable sequences such as "123456", "Password", may not be used.
- Personal details such as a spouse's name, social security numbers, and birthdays may not be used unless accompanied by additional unrelated characters.
- Proper names, geographical locations, common acronyms, and slang may not be used.
- Personal Identification Numbers (PINs) may be used for authentication on designated systems (such as voicemail), in instances where the target asset is low sensitivity, the system does not support passwords, or the PIN is used in conjunction with another factor to authenticate the user (such as a hard-soft token or device fingerprint, out of wallet/knowledge-based authentication). If exposed or compromised, passwords/pins must be changed immediately. Passwords/pins must not be written down
- Passwords must not be saved or "remembered" within applications (i.e. when a dialog box has a 'save password' box to check).
- Passwords must not be hard coded into programs/function keys/macros etc.
- Passwords must not be stored in an unencrypted format

USER ACCOUNTABILITY

User access to IT Resources is tied directly to an individual's User ID. Users are accountable for all actions associated with the use of their assigned User ID and will be held responsible for unauthorized actions found to be intentional, malicious, or negligent. Each user must protect their user ID by:



- 1. Never allowing another person to use or share his/her logon session; because the session is directly associated with an individual's User ID, the user is personally accountable for all actions performed with the ID.
- 2. Locking the workstation or logging off an active session when leaving the workstation

DATA CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY

All data on TPP IT resources is classified as Company Confidential information, unless otherwise specified. If you come into contact with sensitive (i.e. Highly Confidential) company, associate, or customer information (i.e. credit card numbers, personally identifiable information, protected health information) that you were not the intended recipient of, or otherwise do not have business justification to access, notify the Information Security department immediately.

Information must be handled in accordance with requirements associated with its classification. Users are prohibited from sharing TPP Confidential or Highly Confidential information with a third party unless the third party has been authorized to receive that information in accordance with the Third-Party Management Program.

UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS

Users are forbidden from taking actions that are intended to breach or may result in a breach of TPP's or any other companies' or individuals' security, confidentiality or privacy of information assets. These actions include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Accessing an account not assigned to the user or one in which they have not been expressly authorized.
- 2. Taking actions meant to capture information to which the user is not authorized, such as network sniffing, network mapping, port scanning or vulnerability scanning.
- 3. Circumventing any authentication or security mechanism.
- 4. Interfering with or denying service to any authorized user or process. Users should note that the **ability** to perform an action does not correspond with the **authority** to perform that action

Note: Designated personnel may perform the above listed activities in the course of their duties. These individuals authorized by the TPP Chief Information Security Officer. No other individuals may perform these functions, regardless of their intent.

TOWN WEBSITE

The Town Website currently has main informational pages and then individual department pages. The Main Town Webpage shall be managed by the Clerk's Office. All requests for updates/changes to the Main Town Website must be submitted in writing to the Clerk's Office. Each Department will be responsible for updating their individual department webpages. Oversight of this procedure will be provided by the IT Department. It is important to note that some employees may have access to modify the Main Town Page, however, the Clerk's Office is the only authorized party to make changes to the Main Page. Town Website credentials shall not be shared with any unauthorized users.



DENIAL OF SERVICE

Users may not initiate actions which results in limited or preventing other authorized users or systems from performing authorized functions by deliberately generating excessive network traffic (with the exception of performance or load testing by the IT department), and thereby limiting or blocking telecommunications capabilities. This prohibition includes:

- The creation or forwarding of unauthorized mass mailings such as "chain letters".
- Messages with excessively large attachments or embedded graphics that consume large quantities of network bandwidth or streaming excessive video/music.

MALICIOUS CODE

Users are prohibited from intentionally writing, compiling, copying, propagating, executing, or introducing in any manner any code designed to self-replicate, damage, or otherwise hinder the performance of any TPP IT Resource. Examples of these include computer viruses, worms, and Trojan horses.

To prevent this from occurring, unsolicited emails with suspect subject lines/text, attachments, hyperlinks, even if from a known individual, should not be opened or executed. Antivirus/antimalware/antispyware software, device specific firewalls, and other security software installed by the IT Department on company PCs, servers, and other devices should not be suspended, removed, or otherwise interfered with without express approval from the IT Infrastructure department. Users should take reasonable precautions to prevent the propagation of malicious code amongst TPP IT Resources by evaluating the credibility of a link, email, SMS, or attachment received by a user.

TIPS FOR EVALUATING CREDIBILITY INCLUDE:

- Evaluating what was received.
- Does it appear to be a Microsoft Office (Word/Excel) or Adobe document but carry a different file extension (i.e.' .exe')?
- If it includes a link/URL, does it look odd or attempt to download or execute a file? For example, links that make use of a subdomain such as www.<legitamite_destination>.<fake_destination> .com or use top level domain such as ".in" or ".tk" verses ".com" or ".net" may be suspicious.
- Is it soliciting an action from you, such as divulging personal or corporate information about you or others, such as phone numbers, titles, user IDs/passwords, company procedures?
- Is it asking you to download or install something?
- Evaluating the source.
- Is this a known source whose identity has been reasonably confirmed, and should be contacting you?



 If it is a known sender, are there signs that they are being impersonated by sending a nonspecific message, requesting something unusual, or leveraging an unusual communication medium?

PERSONAL (USER OWNED/LEASED) AND CONTRACTOR DEVICES

Only TPP owned/leased/managed personal computers are permitted to access the Corporate Network. Contractor and employee computers may connect to designated guest networks. Personal mobile devices including smartphones and tablets are permitted to connect to TPP systems through the enterprise Mobile Device Management (MDM) utility.

See "Mobile Devices" section for further provisions

Personal mobile devices are prohibited from connecting to the TPP corporate Wi-Fi network, but are permitted to connect to designated guest networks

MOBILE DEVICES - SMARTPHONES, TABLETS, PERSONAL DIGITAL ASSISTANTS, AND JUMP DRIVES

Smartphones or Tablets that access TPP systems may only do so provided they are secured with the company-provided Mobile Device Management utility. TPP Information Technology will provide limited support for personal devices approved to access company resources. Support is limited to the Mobile Device Management utility and any other TPP- provided software. Users are responsible for:

- 1. Costs associated with wireless data plans, personal software purchases/licensing, replacement of lost device, repairs to damaged device.
- 2. Registering and maintaining device warranty.
- 3. Service/billing disputes with seller/wireless carrier.
- 4. Backing up all personal data.
- 5. Device troubleshooting with manufacturer or wireless carrier

TPP-provided mobile devices are supported by the TPP IT Department. Users are responsible for the following:

- 1. Costs associated with personal software purchases/licensing.
- 2. Backing up any personal data.

Users are required to notify the Service/Help Desk immediately in the event of a lost or stolen mobile device, or a device that is sold, given to another individual, sent for repair, or disposed of. Devices will be wiped remotely or reset in the following scenarios:

- Device is lost, stolen, changes custody, or believed to be compromised.
- User is found to be in violation of this policy.
- User no longer has a working relationship with TPP.



 User fails to authenticate successfully after an established number of attempts, in which case the device will be configured to automatically reset.

Users who connect personal devices through the corporate Mobile Device Management Utility recognize and understand that some functionality may be disabled to preserve the security and effective utilization of TPP IT Infrastructure. TPP retains the right to perform limited monitoring and take certain actions on personal mobile devices configured to access TPP data or systems.

TPP may monitor and/or block any activity when leveraging the corporate network as the conduit to the Internet (e.g. browsing the internet while connected to corporate Wi-Fi). TPP may monitor or inspect security configurations, Mobile Device Management (MDM) profiles, and operating system version/patch levels. TPP may block some devices if found to present risk to TPP data or systems.

TPP will perform a "selective wipe" of a device if lost or stolen, which will only remove company data.

TPP may leverage device location monitoring to aid in the recovery of lost or stolen devices. Users are prohibited from compromising, replacing, or significantly altering the operating systems of mobile devices (e.g. jailbreaking or rooting a smartphone or tablet). Devices that are found to have been inappropriately configured in this regard will be blocked from accessing the TPP environment.

Mobile devices with Wi-Fi capability should not be configured to connect automatically to unsecured wireless access points. Wi-Fi capabilities should be turned off when not in use. Mobile devices should not be configured to download Apps from Third Party marketplaces or other untrusted sources. Third party marketplaces circumvent screening and protections put in place by Operating System manufacturers and can be a source of mobile malware.

The Apple App store, Android Marketplace, BlackBerry App World and Windows App Store are examples of de facto platform marketplaces.

Direct downloads from websites or Third-Party marketplaces not endorsed by platform manufacturers should be avoided. Users are prohibited from inserting jump drives, flash drives or any peripheral devices whose origin is not trusted into TPP devices. Jump drives whose origin is known must be scanned by Antivirus/Antimalware utilities prior to use. Highly Confidential company data may not be stored on jump drives or flash drives without the use of encryption.

Users are prohibited from configuring devices to connect to assets not specifically sanctioned or supported by the Information Technology department. Users are prohibited from texting, emailing, surfing the internet, or other distracting activities while operating a motor vehicle. Users should leverage hands free calling capabilities while driving, in accordance with local laws and as necessary to ensure the safety of the user and others

Users are not permitted to change any default settings on a Town-issued phone, iPad, or any other device without prior written authorization from the IT Director.

MESSAGING (EMAIL, TEXT, SMS, INSTANT MESSAGE)



To limit capacity and email processing performance issues, do not use TPP corporate email accounts to sign up for non-work-related solicitations and notifications. The following rules are required by law and are to be strictly adhered to:

- 1. It is strictly prohibited to send or forward messages containing libelous, defamatory, offensive, racist or obscene remarks. If you receive message of this nature, users must promptly notify their supervisor.
- 2. Do not forge or attempt to forge messages.
- 3. Do not send messages using another person's account.
- 4. Do not disguise or attempt to disguise your identity when sending messages

Users should not transmit sensitive information via messaging systems, such as usernames, passwords, credit card information, and social security numbers. If it is necessary to send sensitive information via email, encryption must be used.

Users are prohibited from sending broadcast e-mails such as chain letters, advertisements that are for personal gain or use.

Users are prohibited from using personal email accounts (Gmail, Yahoo, AOL etc.) to conduct TPP business. Email accounts should only be publicized for TPP business use.

Users are Prohibited from Turning ON I Message in Town owned I Phones. This Feature must always remain **DISABLED.**

INTERNET USAGE

Users are prohibited from using public cloud or other third-party services not procured by TPP IT (such as Gmail, Google Docs, Dropbox) to store or transmit TPP Confidential or Highly Confidential data. Do not download unauthorized content, files or software from the Internet. Do not engage in personal Internet activity that interferes with normal business activities. Any personal use cannot:

- Be associated with for-profit outside business activity,
- Involve solicitation, or
- Impact the TPP brand identity

Do not engage in inappropriate or potentially harmful Internet or communications activities, including but not limited to:

- Posting or disclosing non-public TPP information on any publicly accessible Internet computer, bulletin board, chat room, blogs and social media sites.
- Clicking on pop-up links on social media and other websites.
- Participating in gambling activities.
- Using the Internet for unlawful or malicious activities.
- Accessing pornographic or other objectionable material.
- Using abusive or objectionable language or harassment.



- Violating trademark or copyright laws.
- Misrepresenting oneself or TPP.
- Engaging in other activities that could cause congestion and disruption of networks and systems, including the sending of chain messages.
- Responding to external inquiries when not authorized to do so (e.g. press inquiries, sales calls).

When using social media, disclosing TPP information or otherwise representing yourself as a TPP Employee is prohibited. Professional networking sites such as LinkedIn are acceptable, providing company information is not disclosed therein. Designated employees who manage TPP's social networking assets are exempt from this provision within the confines of TPP social media accounts

SOCIAL MEDIA, SOCIAL NETWORKING, AND BLOGGING

This document defines the social networking and social media procedure for the Town of Pembroke Park, the "Town". To address the fast-changing landscape of the Internet and the way residents communicate and obtain information online, Town departments may consider using social media tools to reach a broader audience. The Town encourages the use of social media to further the goals of the Town and the missions of its departments, where appropriate. The Town has an overriding interest and expectation in deciding what is "spoken" on its behalf on social media sites. This procedure establishes guidelines for the use of social media.

All Town social media accounts will have login and password credentials for those authorized to have access to post and never be linked to someone's personal page without prior consent by the Town Manager. All individuals posting will have training on archiving and public records management as it pertains to social media. All Town social media pages are to be managed by the Town Manager's designee. The Town has multiple social media pages, of which each designee is responsible for providing accurate information that professionally represents the Town. IT provides additional oversight for usage and permissions of the social media sites. Designees and users of the social media sites must be pre-approved by the Town Manager. Social media credentials may be not shared with any unauthorized users.

PERSONAL USE

All Town employees may have personal social media accounts/blogs. These accounts/blogs should remain personal in nature and be used to share personal opinions or non-work-related information. Following this outline helps ensure a distinction between sharing personal and Town views.

Town employees must never use their Town e-mail in conjunction with any personal social media accounts/blogs.

The following guidance is for Town employees, who decide to have personal social media accounts/blogs or who decide to comment on posts about official Town business:

Always state your name and, if relevant, role, when discussing Town business.



- Use a disclaimer such as: "The postings on this site are of my own and don't reflect or represent the opinions of the Town of Pembroke Park, for which I work."
- Always write in the first person and please consider that even anonymous postings on blogs/social media accounts can be traced.
- When participating in online communities, the employee should not misrepresent himself or any roll he/she may have within the Town.
- Think twice before posting. The employee is personally responsible for the content published on blogs, Wikipedia or any other form of user-generated media. Please remember that postings on the internet, even if removed/deleted by a user, are either permanently archived or could be saved as screen shots by other users, meaning that everything an employee publishes could be visible to the world permanently. Prior to publishing any post that could make a viewer uncomfortable, employees should review and reconsider that post. If the employee remains unsure and the post is related to the Town, the employee should speak with the Public Information Officer or Human Resources Department.
- Employees should not post comments on work-related legal matters unless he/she has received written legal approval by the Town to do so.
- The use of ethnic slurs, personal insults, obscenity, or engage in any conduct that would not be acceptable in the Town's workplace is strictly prohibited. Proper consideration for the privacy of others and for topics that may be considered objectionable or inflammatory (like religion or politics) should be exercised.
- Personal grievances and/or comments that compromise or disrupt the efficient operation of the Administration or represent the Town in a negative light are discouraged.
- Employees must refrain from speech containing obscene or sexually graphic or explicit material, images, acts and statements or other forms of speech that ridicule, malign, disparage, or otherwise express bias.
- Employees should ensure that all Facebook, Linked-in, Twitter, Instagram or YouTube profiles and related content are consistent with how he/she wishes to present himself/herself with clients and colleagues.
- Do not create a link to the Town's website.
- Do not use the Town's Seal, logo, other intellectual property, or proprietary graphics, or any copyrighted materials.

Employees are responsible for what they post online. Employees who engage in blogging or social networking on the Internet should be mindful that their postings, even if done off premises and while off duty, could have an adverse effect on the Town's legitimate business interests.

REMOTE Access

Any IT Resource used for remote access to TPP IT Resources that is not the property of TPP must be configured to comply with TPP Information Security Policies, Standards, and Procedures. Remote access to the TPP network may not be conducted with a personal or public (i.e. kiosk or internet café) computer. Outlook Web Access is excluded from this provision as it does not



facilitate connectivity to the company network. Outlook Web Access should generally not be used on public or kiosk type computers as they may have malware installed.

See section entitled "Mobile Devices" for provisions specific to related devices

SOFTWARE

Peer to Peer File Sharing programs such as BitTorrent clients, Kazaa, LimeWire, Napster etc. are not permitted on IT Resources. Remote Control/Remote Administration software (e.g. PC Anywhere or Microsoft Remote Desktop Connection, Pocket PC) are not permitted to manage IT Resources, with the exception of those used in an official capacity by the Information Technology department to provide support and administration activities. Users are prohibited from installing Shareware/Freeware, or any software not licensed specifically to TPP.

PHYSICAL SECURITY AND UNATTENDED EQUIPMENT/INFORMATION

Users are responsible for the physical security of IT Resources provisioned to them. Portable devices such as laptops, phones, and tablets should not be left unsecured when left for extended periods, whether within TPP facilities or offsite. Portable devices should be physically locked in a cabinet or through use of a cable when left anywhere for extended periods. Portable devices should not be kept in the passenger compartment of cars but kept out of site and locked in the trunk.

Users staying in hotels should not depend on the security of the hotel room to protect a portable device. Devices left for extended periods should be cable locked or put into a hotel safe. When travelling by air, laptops should be identified with a luggage tag, taken as carry-on luggage whenever possible, and kept in constant contact aboard the aircraft or when in an airport.

Terminate active sessions when finished and secure the workstation or mobile device with an appropriate locking mechanism when leaving the system unattended (i.e. password protected screen saver). Maintain a clean and secure desk and/or work area to reduce the risks of information being inappropriately disclosed, used, altered or destroyed. Remove printouts and faxes from devices immediately. Dispose of documents labeled Confidential or Confidential/Proprietary in appropriate locked shred bins or shred them using a cross-cut type shredder.

SECURITY INCIDENTS

Users and management are required to report all security incidents or suspicious activity (viruses, intrusion attempts, system compromises, offensive emails, inadequate protection of sensitive data, phishing attacks) to the Service/Help Desk or the Information Security department (mpakula@townofpembrokepark.com) as soon as encountered.



DEFINITION OF TERMS

Anniversary Date – The calendar date on which any of the following occur: Completion of probationary period, Promotion or demotion to another position

Appointing Authority – The Town Commission or department heads who have the authority to appoint or remove employees under their jurisdiction.

Classification — A position or group of positions which involve a comparable level of duties and responsibilities and similar qualifications and is designated by a title indicative of the kind of work and for which the same pay range can be applied with reasonable equity.

Classification Plan – A thorough compilation of job descriptions which have been organized according to class.

Compensation – Wages. salaries, fees, allowances, and all other forms of valuable consideration or the amount of any one or more of them paid to an employee, by reason of service rendered in any position, but not including any allowances for expenses authorized and incurred as incidental to employment and which may be separately authorized and/or reimbursed.

Compensation Plan – A schedule of compensation established for each class of positions so that all positions of a given class shall be paid in the same pay range established for the class.

Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) – A strategic document that is a blueprint for an emergency management program containing the 4 phases of emergency management: mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery.

Conduct Unbecoming – refers to the conduct on the part of a certified professional that is contrary to the public interests, or which harms his/her standing of the profession in the eyes of the public.

Continuity of Operations Program (COOP) – the initiative that ensures that government departments/agencies are able to continue operation of their essential functions under a broad range of circumstances including all-hazard emergencies as well as natural, man-made, and technological threats and national security emergencies.

Data Information Assets – Any data, electronic file, record, printed material, message or communication, etc. This is to include ALL data residing in, accessed by, processed by, used, by, transmitted by or through, or generated by those information assets regardless of its medium, media, format, or storage device from its creation or inception through its disposal

Department Head – Employees of the Town designated to be head of a department.

Department Operating Centers (DOCs) – established and activated by individual departments to coordinate and control actions specific to that department during an emergency event.

Demotion – A change in employment status from a position of one class to a position of another class having a lower maximum pay rate than the original class.

Dismissal – Complete separation of an employee from the employment of the Town.

Employee – Any employee of the Town covered by the provisions of these rules and regulations.

(FLSA) Exempt Employment – Employees who are exempt from the overtime provisions under the definitions of the Fair Labor Standards Act (i.e. salaried employees).



Full Time Employee – An employee who has successfully completed the probationary period and who works 40 or more hours per week.

Hardware Information Assets – Any hardware, personal computer, server, workstation, network, router, switch, tape, CD, disk, mobile computing device (phones/smartphones/PDAs, tablets, jump drives/flash drives)

Information Technology (IT) Resources - Any of the following information assets, which are purchased by, owned by, leased to, contracted by, operated by, used by, or controlled by TPP regardless of media, form, or format.

Temporary Employee – Employee whose tenure is intended to be of limited duration (i.e., filling in for illness, vacations, summer months, maternity leave) and usually not to exceed six months in duration. Such employment may be either full or part time.

Job Description – A narrative statement describing the current duties, responsibilities, general requirements, and qualifications for a single position.

Layoff — Separation of a permanently appointed employee from a position in the personnel system because of the reduction on workload available, lack of funds by the Town, abolishment of the position after study, material alteration in the organization or for other related causes.

Overtime – Overtime is any hours worked in excess of the scheduled work hours.

Performance Evaluation – The periodic evaluation or appraisal of an employee's work performance.

Part-Time Employee – Any employee who works less than forty (40) hours per week.

Probationary Employee – An employee who has:

- Not completed the required probationary period; or
- Been placed into probationary status for cause.

Probationary Period – A working test period and an integral part of the evaluation, testing, and/or examination process during which the employee is required to demonstrate fitness for the position by satisfactory performance of the duties of the position and by satisfactory conduct and attendance as prior conditions to receiving permanent status. Initial probationary periods shall normally be one year for Fire Department personnel included in the collective bargaining unit and six months for all other employees. Employees placed on probation for cause may be placed into that status for durations determined by their department heads or the Town Commission.

Promotion – The upgrading of an employee from a position of one class to a position of another class which has a higher maximum pay rate.

Reclassification – The action taken to officially change an existing position to a different appropriate class because of a change in the duties, responsibilities, and/or requirements of the existing position, or because of a revision to the classification.

Resignation – The voluntary termination of employment by an employee.

Software Information Assets – Any software, program, business application, operating system, script, macro, service, voicemail system, Intranet/Extranet, etc.

Suspension – Enforced leave of absence, without pay, of an employee for disciplinary purposes or, with



or without pay, as determined by the Town Commission, during the investigation of alleged misconduct of the employee.

Temporary employee – An employee employed for a period of up to 90 days, when permanent employment for the job to be performed is not anticipated.

Transfer – Change of an employee from one position to another.

Users - Users of IT Resources include company and affiliate employees, contractors, and consultants, and any other individual under TPP's control or influence, that directly accesses IT Resources.

Vacancy – A position established in a current budget as duly created and not currently occupied by an incumbent



ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND RECEIPT

I have received my copy of the Employee Handbook.

The employee handbook describes important information about Town of Pembroke Park, and I understand that I should consult with the Department of Human Resources, or Town Manager regarding any questions not answered in the handbook. I have entered my employment relationship with Town of Pembroke Park voluntarily and acknowledge that there is no specified length of employment. Accordingly, either I or Town of Pembroke Park can terminate the relationship at will, with or without cause, at any time, so long as there is not violation of applicable federal or state law.

I understand and agree that no manager, supervisor, or representative of Town of Pembroke Park has any authority to enter into any agreement for employment other than at-will.

This manual and the policies and procedures contained herein supersede all prior practices, oral or written representations, or statements regarding the terms and conditions of your employment with Town of Pembroke Park. By distributing this handbook, Town of Pembroke Park expressly revokes all previous policies and procedures which are inconsistent with those contained herein.

I understand that, except for employment at-will status, any and all policies and practices may be changed at any time by Town of Pembroke Park, and the Town reserves the right to change my hours, wages and working conditions at any time. All such changes will be communicated through official notices, and I understand that revised information may supersede, modify, or eliminate existing policies. The Town Manager can adopt any revisions to the policies in this handbook.

I understand and agree that nothing in the Employee Handbook creates, or is intended to create, a promise or representation of continued employment and that employment at Town of Pembroke Park is employment at-will, which may be terminated at the will of either Town of Pembroke Park or myself. Furthermore, I acknowledge that this handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a legal document. I understand and agree that employment and compensation may be terminated with or without cause and with or without notice at any time by Town of Pembroke Park or myself.

I have received the handbook, and I understand that it is my responsibility to read and comply with the policies contained in this handbook and any revisions made to it.

Employee's Signature	
Employee's Name (Print)	
 Date	